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Sparking the joy of

Creativity

The sewing machine was a priceless possession
occupying pride of place in every Sri Lankan home.
For timeless generations, Singer sewing machines
have fostered the spirit of creativity by creating
apparel that stands out as truly unique. It was a
source of joy and happiness for women and
families. We seek to rekindle this joy and passion
for sewing and crafts through our modern sewing
machines.
As we venture forth with new models we strive to
elevate the realms of sewing to new dimensions, by
igniting the spark of infinite creativity.

Singer Industries (Ceylon)
PLC is a Limited Liability
Company incorporated and
domiciled in Sri Lanka. Being
in operation over five decades
the Company is engaged in
assembly of sewing machines
and manufacture of cabinets
and stands for sewing machines.
The Company’s sole customer is
Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC.
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Our vision
To manufacture world-class
appliances for the home
Our Mission
To improve quality of life by providing
comforts and conveniences at fair prices

Our Objectives
❁❁ To be the Market Leader in our Product and Market Segments
❁❁ Provide our Consumers with the Best Service in the Island
❁❁ Provide our Consumers with products of latest Technology
❁❁ Develop our Employees to achieve their real Potential
❁❁ Provide our Shareholders with steady Asset Growth and Return on
Investment above our Industry Norm
❁❁ Grow our Revenue and Profits at a rate above the current Industry Norm
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Our Values
Consumers

We live up to the expectations of a responsible
organization by contributing to the improvement in
the quality of our customers through outstanding
products and services
Shareholders

We provide a reasonable return while safeguarding
their investment
Employees

We respect each other as individuals and
encourage cross-functional teamwork while
providing opportunities for career development
Suppliers

We develop our suppliers to be partners in
progress and we share our growth with them
Competitors

We respect our competitors and recognise their
contribution to market value
Community

We conduct our business by conforming to
the ethics of our country and share the social
responsibility of the less fortunate
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For the fifteen

For the twelve

months ended

months ended
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2018/19

2017

Rs. ’000

Rs. ’000

786,935

646,579

3,410

8,006

Profit/(loss) before tax

29,013

70,931

Profit/(loss) for the period

21,029

68,410

Stated capital

100,004

38,463

Capital reserve

707,143

655,523

Turnover - net of taxes
Share of profit of associate Company (net of income tax)

Financial Reports

541,801

503,844

Shareholders' funds

1,348,948

1,197,829

Property, plant and equipment - net

1,121,724

947,370

295,000

200,000

71,959

68,549

211,783

271,221

15,701

51,156

1.57

13.30

75

75

Earnings per share -Rs.

2.10

6.84

Earnings/(loss) per share before change in fair value of current investment

(0.53)

1.84

134.89

311.42

58

144

Net income to net turnover - %

2.67

10.58

Return on average net assets - %

0.02

0.06

8.1

0.43

Interest cover - times

4.63

549.27

Operating return on investment - %

1.97

4.55

Revenue reserve

Investment property
Investments
Net current assets
Gross dividends
Dividend per share - Rs.
Dividend payout %

Net assets per share - Rs.
Market value per share - 31 march/ 31 december Rs.

Debt to equity ratio - %

The information presented above are not entirely comparable due to the change of financial period from 31 December to 31
March.
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2014
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2017

Profit/(Loss) After Tax

2016

2015

Profit/(Loss) Before Tax

0

2018/19

2017

2016

2015

2014

(15-months ended 31 March 2019)

Turnover

Shareholders’ Funds

(2017 - 647 Millions)

(2017 - 1,198 Millions)

787 Millions
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400

1,349 Millions
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“Creating a strong platform of growth through our
business strategies.”
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“During this challenging period, the
corporate strategy was primarily
focused on improving operational
efficiency and enhancing product
quality.”
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Operating environment
The Sri Lankan economy recorded a
GDP growth rate of 3.2% in comparison
to a GDP of 3.4% recorded in the
previous year. The industrial sector which
contributed 27% of the GDP grew at a
very marginally pace of 0.9% compared
to a growth rate of 4.1% achieved in
2017. During the year the construction
sector contracted by 2.1%.
The Company faced a challenging
year mainly attributable to adverse
externalities. During the period under
review, discretionary consumer spending
consisting of expenditure on household
- durables remained flat compared to a
growth in the previous year. The sharp
depreciation of the Sri Lankan Rupee
against the US Dollar by almost 16.4%
during the 2018 along with a significant
increase in commodity prices during
the period led to increase in the cost
of production of the Company which
eroded the margins.

Performance and strategic
direction
The Company’s overall revenue levels
recorded Rs. 787 million for the period
of fifteen months compared to Rs. 647
million in last financial year with an
increase of 22%. The Company’s profit
before tax decreased by 60% to Rs
29 million compared to the previous
year. This was mainly due to a sharp
decline in sales of sewing machines
due to declining purchasing power
of consumers in a subdued economic
backdrop. However, it is heartening to
note that the Company’s revenue from
its sub-contracting operations showed
much potential with the revenue from
manufacturing of washing machine
components doubling to Rs.146 million.
The Company’s profit after tax reduced
to Rs 21 million a 69% decrease
compared to the previous year.
Escalating cost of sales led to a decline
in the Company’s gross profitability.
The profitability levels were maintained
through the returns generated from

Dividends

Considering the challenges posed by
the external environment, the Company
considered a two-pronged strategy for
its core products. The Company focused
on product development for its main
product – sewing machines and moved
to subcontract manufacturing of washing
machine components and air-conditioner
brackets for Regnis Appliances (Pvt)
Ltd and the parent company Singer (Sri
Lanka) PLC respectively. This strategy has
created an additional revenue stream
for the Company generating additional
revenue amounting to Rs. 157 million.

Way forward

The Company introduced two new
digital and portable sewing machines
to its range to appeal to the younger
millennial customer segment, capitalizing
on the emerging trend among this
segment towards sewing as a hobby and
a craft.
During this challenging period, the
corporate strategy was primarily focused
on improving operational efficiency
and enhancing product quality. With
the objective of improving production
processes the Company invested in new
machinery and an injection moulding
plant for sewing machine components
during the latter part of the period. This
would enable the Singer Industries to
generate cost efficiencies and improve
product quality thereby minimising
warranty and after sales service costs in
the long term.
Moving forward, the Company aims
to continue its focus on enhancement
of energy efficient operations, while
implementing further initiatives
to minimize waste and reduce the
Company’s overall environmental
footprint.

The Board of Directors has approved a
final dividend of Rs 1.57 per share.

The retail segment outlook will take a
temporary setback due to the prevailing
security situation of the country. However,
I am optimistic that the retail sector is
poised for growth in the medium and
long term driven by increasing disposal
income levels, growing middle class and
increased urbanisation.
The Company plans to increase its
investment on new machinery to expand
the Company’s product portfolio in line
with the operational plan for the financial
period 2019/20. Thereby our sub contract manufacturing operation will be
further strengthened creating the right
platform to expand our product range
for sub-contracting which would create
a sustainable revenue generation source
for the future.

Acknowledgements
I wish to take this opportunity to
appreciate the valued staff and the
management team of Singer Industries
(Ceylon) PLC for their continued
commitment and dedication. I express
my sincere gratitude to my colleagues
on the Board for their valued counsel
and strategic direction. I express my
heartfelt appreciation to all our valued
stakeholders who have been an integral
part of the Company’s journey so far.

(Sgd.)
Mohan Pandithage
Chairman
16 May 2019

Corporate governance
I take this opportunity to express
my appreciation for the contribution
rendered by Mr.H.A.Pieris, Mr. Ranil De
Silva, Mr.G.J.Walker and Mr. A.C.M. Irzan
(Alternative Director) who resigned from
the Board during the period. I welcome
Mr. M.H.Wijewardene and Mr. D.K.De
Silva Wijeyeratne who joined the Board
during the period.
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I am pleased to present to you the
Annual Report and Audited Financial
Statements of Singer Industries (Ceylon)
PLC for the financial period 2018/19.

the financial and real estate investment
assets, which cushioned the overall
impact on profitability levels due to
declining sales and escalating costs.
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“Key strategic priorities for the period
included diversifying our revenue
streams, enhancing the customer
value proposition through new product
development and driving process
efficiencies and cost rationalisation
initiatives.”
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Strategy and Performance
Key strategic priorities for the period
included diversifying our revenue
streams, enhancing the customer value
proposition through new product
development and driving process
efficiencies and cost rationalisation
initiatives. The sale of sewing machines
continues to be our key source of
income, although the unfavourable
market conditions during the last
quarter led to a respective 29% and 30%
decline in sales volumes and revenue
respectively. However, this was partly
offset by strong growth in revenue arising
from sub-contract manufacturing of
washing machine and air-conditioner
components for group companies during
the period. Resultantly, total revenue
for the 15-months period recorded an
increase of 22% to Rs.787 million on a
comparable 12-months basis. However,
revenue showed a decline of 2% in
twelve months comparison. The sharp
increase in domestic raw material prices
coupled with the depreciation of the Sri
Lanka Rupee and an unfavourable sales
mix led to the Company incurring a gross
loss of Rs.17.6 million during the period.
In taking a long-term view of customer
value, we continued to invest in new
product development to drive a better
sales mix accordingly, the Company
introduced a portal and digital sewing
machine during the period with the aim
of appealing to a younger demographic
having identified the emerging trend of
engaging in sewing as a hobby.
The Company’s overall profitability
was strengthened by rental income of
Rs.25 million arising from its investment

A sustainable value
proposition
Despite the challenging operating
conditions during the period, the
Company placed ongoing emphasis
on driving long-term sustainable value
to its stakeholders. We continued
to strengthen our employee value
proposition by providing opportunities
for training and skill development, career
progression and creating a conducive
and engaging work environment.

Special thanks and appreciations to
our former CEO, Mr Asoka Pieris, for
his services and valuable contribution
rendered to the Company.
The results set before you are reflective
of the capabilities and dynamism of
team Singer Industries, and I wish to
thank our senior management and
all our employees for their continued
commitment and dedication. I also wish
to thank all our stakeholders including
our customers, suppliers and business
partners for partnering our growth
journey.
Thank you.

(Sgd.)
Mahesh Wijewardene
Managing Director/CEO
16 May 2019

As a manufacturing organisation, we are
cognisant of the environmental impacts
of our operations and continue to drive
improvements in our environmental
footprint.

Prospects
While the short-term growth prospects
are likely to be affected by the prevalent
security concerns, we remain confident
of the long-term growth potential of
the industry. Key drivers for growth
include increasing disposable incomes,
an expanding middle class and rising
propensity towards sophisticated
products. We hope to capture growth
opportunities arising from emerging
customer preferences through offering
a range of new products. We will also
seek to enhance our sub-contracting
operation, effectively diversifying our
revenue streams and creating a platform
for sustainable earnings generation.

Acknowledgements
As the period draws to an end, I would
like to take this opportunity to extend
my appreciation to the Chairman, CoChairman and Board of Directors for
the confidence placed in me and their
valuable counsel.
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The year under review was a challenging
one for the Company, characterised
by lower disposal income, subdued
consumer spending, escalation of
raw material costs and the sharp
depreciation of the exchange rate.
Against this backdrop, the Company
recorded a revenue of Rs.787 million
for the 15-months period ending 31
March 2019, while profit for the period
amounted to Rs. 21 million. Despite the
challenging conditions, the Company
maintained ongoing focus on widening
its product portfolio and enhancing its
manufacturing capabilities to drive future
growth.

property and finance income of Rs.22
million. We also placed ongoing
emphasis on enhancing operational
efficiencies through investing in our
manufacturing infrastructure including
new machinery and an injection
moulding plant. This is expected to drive
a sustained reduction in warranty costs
and after sales service costs in the longterm. Overall the Company’s profit after
tax for the 15-months period amounted
to Rs.21 million, compared to Rs.68
million the previous year.
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Mohan Pandithage
Chairman
(Executive Director)

Kelum Kospelawatta
Director
(Executive Director)

Joined the Hayleys Group in 1969.
Appointed to the Board in 2017.
Chairman and Chief Executive of
Hayleys PLC since July 2009. Fellow
of the Chartered Institute of Logistics
and Transport (UK). Honorary Consul
of the United Mexican States (Mexico),
to Sri Lanka. Council Member of the
Employers’ Federation of Ceylon.
Member of the Advisory Council
of the Ceylon Association of Ship’s
Agents. Recipient of the Best Shipping
Personality award by the Institute of
Chartered Shipbrokers; Excellence
Leadership Recognition - Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka;
Honored with lifetime achievement
award at Seatrade - Sri Lanka Ports,
Trade and Logistics; Life time award for
most outstanding Logistics and Transport
personality of the year - Chartered
Institute of Logistics and Transport.

Appointed to the Board in 2014.
Appointed as Factory Director Associate Companies on 01 October
2014. A Director of Regnis (Lanka) PLC,
and Regnis Appliances (Pvt) Ltd.

Mahesh Wijewardene
Managing Director / Group CEO
(Executive Director)
Appointed as Managing Director and
Group Chief Executive Officer of Singer
Group of Companies on 01 November
2018.
Mr.Wijewardene has held several senior
positions within the Singer, including
Director-Commercial, Director-Marketing,
Director-Sales and Chief Operating
Officer. He is a Past Chairman of the
Ceylon Chamber of Commerce – Import
Section and Sri Lanka – China Business
Council. Holds a Masters’ in Business
Administration from the University of
Southern Queensland, and Diploma in
General Management.
Member of the Hayleys Group
Management Committee.
Serves as a Director of Singer (Sri Lanka)
PLC, Singer Finance (Lanka) PLC, Regnis
(Lanka) PLC, Regnis Appliances (Pvt) Ltd,
Singer Digital Media (Pvt) Ltd, Singer
Business School (Pvt) Ltd, Reality Lanka
(Pvt) Ltd, Domus Lanka (Pvt) Ltd and CSR
Lanka (Guarantee) Ltd.

Holds BSc. (Hons) Degree in Mechanical
Engineering, University of Moratuwa,
and MBA from the University of Sri
Jayawardenepura. Member of the
Industrial Association of Sri Lanka and a
Member of the National Labour Advisory
Committee.
Sarath Ganegoda
Director
(Non Executive Director)
Joined the Board in 2017. Joined Hayleys
in March 2007 and was appointed to the
Hayleys Group Management Committee
in July 2007. Appointed to the Hayleys
Board in September 2009. Fellow of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri
Lanka and a Member of the Institute of
Management Accountants of Australia.
Holds a MBA from the Postgraduate
Institute of Management, University of
Sri Jayawardanapura. Worked for the
Hayleys Group between 1987 and 2002.
Subsequently he held several senior
management positions in large private
sector entities in Sri Lanka and overseas.
Has responsibility for the Strategic
Business Development Unit of Hayleys
PLC.
Hisham Jamaldeen
Director
(Independent Non-Executive Director)
Appointed to the Board in 2017. He is a
finance professional with over 17 years of
experience and a seasoned commercial
property investor and advisor. He is a
Fellow of the Association of Certified
Chartered Accountants, UK and holds
a Degree in Engineering and Business
from the University of Warwick, UK. He
is the Founding Managing Director
of Steradian Capital Investments
(Pvt) Ltd, responsible for Financing,
Corporate Structuring, Acquisitions and
Development.
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He serves as a Director of Singer (Sri
Lanka) PLC, Hayleys PLC, Talawakelle Tea
Estates PLC, Haycarb PLC, Regnis (Lanka)
PLC and Lanka Realty Investments
PLC. He is also Executive Director
of numerous real estate companies
focusing on commercial property
investment and development.
Vidya Vidyaratne
Director
(Independent Non Executive Director)
Joined the Board of Singer Industries
(Ceylon) PLC in 1997. Holds B.Sc. (Hons.)
Degree in Production/Mechanical
Engineering, University of Peradeniya.
MBA from the University of Southern
Queensland, Australia. A Chartered
Engineer, Member of the Institute of
Engineers, Sri Lanka. He Serves as a
Director of Regnis (Lanka) PLC.
Noel Joseph
Director
(Independent Non-Executive Director)
Appointed to the Board in 2017. He
holds over 31 years of multi-faceted
experience in engineering and
engineering consultancy in Sri Lanka
and internationally. He has held senior
positions in organisations such as State
Engineering Corporation, Heavyfab Ltd,
Development Consultants Lanka (Pvt)
Ltd, Safari Company Ltd, Saudi Arabia
and Baharudden P M S Associates,
Brunei. He is a Member of the Institution
of Electrical and Electronic Engineers
(MIEEE)-USA, The Institution of Lighting
Engineers (MILE) - UK and The New York
Academy of Science (MNYAS) - USA.
The Illumination Engineering Society
(MIES) - USA. Incorporated Engineer - UK
(IEng) and The Institution of Engineering
Technology (MIET) - UK.
He serves on the Board of Regnis (Lanka)
PLC, Hayleys PLC and is the Managing
Partner of Cadteam and Proprietor of N J
Consultants.

Currently serves as the Chairman of
Lanka Hotels and Residencies (Pvt)
Ltd. and Urban Investments and
Development Company (Pvt) Ltd.
(subsidiary of Urban Development
Authority) and as a Director of Regnis
(Lanka) PLC, Regnis Appliances (Pvt) Ltd,
Dipped Products PLC, Lanka Walltiles
PLC, Lanka Tiles PLC, Lanka Ceramic
PLC, Horana Plantations PLC, Swisstek
Ceylon PLC and Insurance and Financial
Services (Pvt) Ltd.
Dilip Wijeyeratne
Director
(Independent Non-Executive Director)
Appointed to the Board on 01 May
2018. He is an Associate Member of
the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of Sri Lanka (ACA), Fellow Member of
The Chartered Institute of Management
Accountants, UK, (FCMA) and a
Graduate Member of The Australian
Institute of Company Directors (GAICD).

Mr. Wijeyeratne serves as a NonExecutive Director of Singer (Sri Lanka)
PLC, Regnis (Lanka) PLC, Hayleys Fibre
PLC and Sampath Bank PLC.
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Appointed to the Board in 2017. Member
of the Western Province Council during
the period 1989 to 2009.

He moved as a finance professional
to Price Waterhouse, Bahrain, and
has extensive experience in audit and
advisory services. Commenced a Banking
career at HSBC Bank Middle East, as
Head of Finance and Operations and
latterly, was Head of Global Markets
and Treasury for the group offices of
HSBC group in the Kingdom of Bahrain.
A member of the senior management
team. Responsible for Corporate
Treasury Sales and management of
Asset and Liability Management (ALCO)
for three legal entities of HSBC group
operating in Bahrain. In 2010 joined
Third Wave International WLL (TWI) as an
equity partner and CEO and embraced
entrepreneurship. Leads a team of
consultants and facilitates consultancy
offerings in Financial Advisory, Human
Resources, Marketing, Project and
Quality Management, Research and
Learning and Development to the private
and public sector entities in Bahrain and
Oman.

Financial Reports

Gamini Gunaratne
Director
(Independent Non-Executive Director)
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Financial and Operational Review
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The Financial Statements present an
overview of the financial performance
and position of Singer Industries (Ceylon)
PLC and its Equity Accounted Investee,
Reality (Lanka) Limited. The following
discussion and analysis compares the
financial performance as set out in
the Audited Financial Statements as
at 31 March 2019 with the financial
performance of the preceding year
comprising twelve months ending 31
December 2017.

Operations and Production

Financial Reports

The Company has two major products
lines the traditional sewing machines
and the portable sewing machines. The
traditional sewing machines consists of
the straight stitch and zig-zag sewing
machines. The Company has expanded
its sewing machine range with the
portable and digital sewing machines
to cater to the discerning needs of
the modern customers. The Company
also manufactures washing machine
components, refrigerator components
and air conditioner brackets to its affiliate
and parent Company.
The sewing machines manufactured
by the Company is marketed by our
parent Company, Singer (Sri Lanka)
PLC. The washing machine components
and refrigerator components are
manufactured as a sub-contract
operation to our affiliated Company
- Regnis Group. The Company also
commenced the manufacturing of air
conditioner brackets to our parent
Company, Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC.

Revenue
The Company generated a total revenue
of the Company of Rs. 787 million for
the period of 15 months in 2018/19.
There was an increase of 22% in revenue
compared to 2017, which was Rs. 647
million.
For the appropriate comparison
purposes the total revenue is adjusted
for 12 months. The total revenue of
the Company for the first 12 months
accounted to Rs. 634 million, there was
a decrease of 2% in revenue compared
to the previous financial year ending
31 December 2017. The major factors
contributing to the decline in revenue
are the low demand for domestic sewing
machines due to constrained disposable

income levels driven by adverse
economic conditions and the overall
down-turn in the economy. Also, the
declined ranking for the domestic sewing
machines in consumer wish-list attributes
to stagnate the growth of the sewing
machines’ market.
The Company displayed a noteworthy
growth from one of its major products,
the manufacture of washing machine
components. The products’ sales have
increased significantly compared to the
financial year ending 31 December 2017
with revenue levels doubling to Rs.146
million.
Turnover
Rs. Mn
800
700
600
500

million compared to the gross loss of Rs.
4.5 million in previous financial year 2017.
The gross loss position was aggravated
due to the lower sales in main product
lines. Further the depreciation of the
Sri Lankan Rupee against the USD by
approximately 16.4%, during the last
quarter of 2018 and the increase in
domestic prices of local materials also
contributed to the declining gross
profits.
To recover from the significant reduction
of profitability, the Company embarked
on several initiatives and strategies
to enhance non-core operational
activities and to improve operational
efficiency within the organisation. These
activities are expected to improve the
profitability levels in the next financial
year. Furthermore, the new additions to
our product portfolio will enhance the
profitability margines in the medium to
long term.

400
300
200
100
0

2015

2016

2017

2018/19

15 months ended 31 March 2019

The revenue generated from the sale of
refrigerator components to Regnis
(Lanka) PLC and supply of air conditioner
brackets to Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC has
contributed Rs 18 million for the period
under review. It was encouraging to note
that the non-core operational activities
have displayed an encouraging growth
level by strengthening the revenue base
of the Company. Thus, the total
contribution from the non-core
operational activities is amounted to Rs.
164 million which is 21% to the total
revenue of the Company.
In the last quarter of the financial period,
the Company successfully launched
two sewing machine models to the
market by replacing one existing model
and introducing a new entrance to the
market.

Gross Profit/(loss)
During the financial period, the Company
recorded a gross loss of Rs. 17.5 million.
The gross loss increased to Rs. 17.5
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Enhanced quality assurance processes
and sourcing changes are expected to
minimise warranty cost, improve after
sales service and strengthen our product
quality. Company is actively utilizing
social media platforms to strengthen
the after sales services and improve the
product quality.

Other Operating Income
The Company’s other operating income
of Rs. 24.6 million for fifteen months
primarily consisted the rental income
earned from its investment property
(approximately 50.42 perches). The
Company earns rental income by
providing a property to its parent
Company, Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC. The
increase in investment property rentals
was the key factor for the growth in total
rental income.
The management wishes to expand its
investment property and storage facility
in line with its strategic objectives set out
in the 2019/20 plan of Singer (Sri Lanka)
PLC.

Operating profits
The administration and selling expenses
of the Company for the fifteen months
ending 31 March 2019 amounted
to Rs. 21.5 million compared to Rs.
9.5 million for the twelve months
ending 31 December 2017. This is

The operating profit for the period was
Rs. 11.9 million, compared to Rs. 46.8
million in the previous year 2017. Fair
value gain from investment property
of Rs. 50 million has been imputed to
the operating profit of the Company in
2017. The fair value gain for the current
financial period amounted to Rs. 26.35
million.
Operating Profit

Capital expenditure

Realty (Lanka) Ltd is an entity operating
in the real estate industry that
contributed a profit share of Rs. 3.4
million in 2018/19, compared to Rs. 8
million in previous financial year 2017.

During the last quarter of the financial
period 2018/19, the Company invested
in an injection moulding plant enabling
in-house production of several parts for
sewing machines and other components
which were outsourced previously.
Further, the Company invested on
pattern plates for sewing machine stands
in order to improve the quality of the
existing product. The Company expects
to invest in new machinery to expand the
Company’s revenue mix in line with the
operational plan of 2019/20.

Profitability
In the financial period 2018/19, the
Company’s profitability levels were
affected by the low revenue with the
declined profit margins and escalated
cost of sales. However, the Company’s
financial and real estate investment
assets cushioned the impact on profits
to some extent thereby generate a Profit
before tax of Rs. 29 million for the fifteen
months period.
PBT
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Finance costs and
borrowings
The finance cost of the Company showed
an increase to Rs. 8 million compared to
Rs. 0.1 million in the previous financial
year 2017 mainly due to a loan obtained
from Commercial Bank PLC at the
beginning of the current financial period
and the increase in imported material
cost.

Finance income and
investment assets
The Company recorded finance income
of Rs. 22 million for the period under
review primarily via the investment in
fixed deposit with an affiliated company,
Singer Finance (Lanka) PLC. The increase
is in line with the rise in interest rate
during the financial period.

The Board of Directors has approved a
final dividend of Rs 1.57 per share.

Rs. Mn

Rs. Mn
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Dividends

Taxation
During the period under review the
Company paid income tax of Rs. 7.9
million, at an income tax rate of 28%.
The Company contributed Rs. 89 million
of taxes to the Government in 2018/19,
through both direct and indirect taxes.

Net profit for the period
Net profit for the period was Rs. 21
million compared to Rs. 68.4 million
in the previous financial year. The net
profit for the period is inclusive of a fair
valuation gain of Rs. 26.35 million (Rs. 50
million in 2017).

During the last financial year, Hayleys
PLC became the ultimate parent entity
of the Company through one of the
largest transactions carried out on the
CSE. Hayleys PLC is the key driving party
of Singer Industries (Ceylon) PLC. The
Company adopted several strategic
initiatives with guidance and direction of
the ultimate parent Company during the
current financial period. The Company is
optimistic about the future direction and
the synergistic benefits that will accrue to
the Company which is derived from the
brand affinity and strength of the Singer
brand with its established presence in Sri
Lanka.

Financial Reporting
The Company is committed in
inculcating the best practices and
policies in financial reporting while
ensuring that the Financial Statements
reflect a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company enabling
Shareholders and other stakeholders to
make a fair assessment of the Company’s
performance and position.
The Company also ensures timely
delivery of both quarterly and annual
Financial Statements to minimize
the time lag in disseminating public
information.
Ratmalana
16 May 2019
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The Company has experienced
increasing selling and distribution
costs due to warranty cost increase. To
mitigate and control this cost element
the management introduced certain
strategies to minimise the warranty cost
through quality improvement initiatives.
Furthermore, structured and effective
communication with our suppliers was
also initiated to control this cost element.

Equity Accounted Investee

Financial Reports

mainly attributable to the increase in
management fee, audit fee, professional
fee etc.
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Singer Industries (Ceylon) PLC continually
assesses both internal and external
business environment in order to identify,
measure, monitor and manage its risks
that can be adversely impacted to
Company performance.

employees to promptly report any
irregularity or fraud.
At strategic level our risk management
objectives are,

Corporate Governance
Financial Reports

•

To identify the Company’s significant
risks.

Risk is an integral part of any business.
Risk can be ‘anything’ that either
prevents an organisation from achieving
its objectives and/or disturbs the smooth
functioning thereof. Any organisation is
exposed to a multitude of risks though
the type and magnitude of risks may
vary from industry to industry and from
organisation to organisation. Therefore
it is a matter of identifying the sources
of risk, their likelihood of occurrence and
impact, and developing a comprehensive
framework to address them.

•

To formulate the Company’s risk
appetite and ensure that business
profile and plans are consistent with
it.

•

To optimize risk/return decisions by
taking them as closely as possible
to the business, while establishing
strong and independent review and
challenge structures.

•

To ensure that business growth plans
are properly supported by effective
risk infrastructure.

While ‘risk’ is generally associated
with ‘downside’ and has negative
connotations such as losses, failures,
break downs etc., proper management
of risks has an upside potential as well for
organisations.

•

To manage risk profiles to ensure that
specific financial deliverables remain
possible under a range of adverse
business conditions.

•

To help executives improve the
control and coordination of risk
taking across the business.

MANAGING RISKS

Given the above, we are mindful of
the various risks that our Company is
exposed to and have taken suitable
and adequate measures to manage
them which will help us to meet the
expectations of all the stakeholders.
Given the fact that risks can be
originated at any touch point,
risk management is everybody’s
responsibility - from the Board of
Directors to the office assistant. The
management, headed by the CEO
acts as the first line of defense and
bears the primary responsibility for
risk management and collaborates
with the Company’s Strategic Business
Units (SBUs) and divisional heads in this
regard.
Company has deployed best
international practices in its endeavors
to manage risks. The Group’s system of
internal controls covers all policies and
procedures, enabling significant strategic
and operational risks to be identified
and managed. Effective systems and
procedures have also been designed
to deal with fraud and encourage

REPORTING
Monthly and quarterly reports are
produced at each operating unit,
that compare the performance of the
Company in terms of predetermined
performance indicators against plans,
past performance and trends, enabling
them to monitor risks and initiate
necessary corrective action, in case of
potentially risky situations. This process
ensures the Management Committee
is promptly informed of deviations and
possible sources of risk.

INTERNAL and EXTERNAL AUDIT
Internal and external audits are crucial
in the risk management process. These
auditors review reports on the Company’s
operational and financial systems
and recommend corrective action to
manage any risks that they identify. Audit
Committee reviews significant audit
findings. A brief description of the risks
that the Company is exposed to and
risk management measures in place are
given below:
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ECONOMIC RISK
The Company’s business operations
are sensitive to economic conditions of
the country and in particular the level
of consumer spending. Apart from that
there is stiff competition in the lines of
products that we manufacture. In order
to mitigate adverse implications of these
factors, we are constantly on the move
to design and develop products that
meet our customers’ needs best. At the
same time, we have deployed aggressive
cost management initiatives so that we
will be able to market products with
superior value at competitive prices. We
continuously look for new sources of
supplies and attempt to contain costs
through efficient production of goods
and enhanced local value addition.

ASSET RISK
This relates to risks that are associated
with the physical assets of the Company
such as destruction, loss or theft as well
as technical and other defects.
We have insured every such asset against
all identifiable and insurable risks. The
relevant insurance policies are subject
to a comprehensive annual review, with
modifications being made as deemed
necessary. Provisions are made against
obsolete inventory identified through
periodic verifications.

INVESTMENT RISK
While investing in design and
development of new products is an
imperative for the Company to remain
competitive, it raises fresh risks in terms
of risks of failure and potential damage
to the image of the Company. To
mitigate this risk, the Company engages
in a thorough appraisal before any such
investment is made. A due diligence
study ensures that projected budgets
and forecasts can be met and examines
the impact of technological and other
factors on the investment decision.

FINANCIAL RISK
Financial risk relates to the availability
of financial resources for the smooth
functioning of the Company’s operations
and is primarily managed through the
Group strength thereby ensuring that
cost-effective funding is available at all
times while minimising the negative

Liquidity issues can have an adverse
impact on on-going operations as well
as investment decisions. In order to
minimise the risk, the Company regularly
reviews its liquidity position and reports
to the Board. Through continuous rolling
forecasts, the future cash requirements
are ascertained. The Company has
excellent relationships with the banks it
deals with and enjoys substantial banking
facilities. In addition, treasury of the
parent Company, Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC
also assists the Company by providing
funds at competitive rates in times of
need.

RISKS FROM FISCAL CHANGES
Arising from the overall macroeconomic
policies, priorities and revenue
considerations, Government changes
in taxes and duty structure applicable
to manufacture/sale of products from
time to time. This may pose a risk to
the Company since it has invested
heavily in the infrastructure by setting up
factories and generating employment
opportunities for many people and
hold stocks of substantial value at
any given point in time. In order to
mitigate this risk, we continue to work
with the Chambers of Commerce,
Industrial Associations and such
other organizations to protect the
local industries, to voice our concerns
regarding possible adverse impacts
of sudden changes in taxes and duty
structure and lobby for necessary
incentives.

LABOUR RISK
Labour issues can affect product quality,
output, market share as well as the
Company goodwill and reputation.
Among other issues are the likelihood
of labour related litigation and investing
in time and resources in recruitment and
training. Through Collective Agreements
with the labour unions representing its
workers, the Company makes every effort
to ensure a contented and motivated
workforce at all times. These agreements

Welfare and benefit schemes provide
our people with additional material
incentives and a sense of community,
belonging and ownership.

SUPPLIER RISK
We procure materials from a large
number of suppliers both local and
foreign for the production of goods.
Dependence on external suppliers
exposes the Company to possible supply
disruption and defective third party
manufacturing in both raw materials
and components. In order to minimize
disruptions to supplies and also to
ensure the quality of the materials
supplied, we have put in place certain
measures including procurement from
overseas being done from ISO certified
suppliers, maintaining multiple suppliers
for raw materials and maintaining a
good coordination between suppliers
and quality assurance department and
frequent visits to the factories of the local
suppliers and advising them on quality
assurance.

MARKETING RISK
The Company does not undertake
marketing of the products to the final
consumer on its own. Instead, all the
goods manufactured by the Company
are sold to the parent Company, Singer
(Sri Lanka) PLC. The risk of depending on
one buyer for the Company’s products
is minimised by entering into a formal
marketing agreement with Singer (Sri
Lanka) PLC, which is a highly reputed and
respected Company among households
in Sri Lanka with an unparalleled
distribution network and a reputation for
after sales service.

specific sources of reputation risk are the
environmental effects of the production
and related activities and any issues
concerning the quality of the products
manufactured.

OTHER RISKS
Apart from the specific risks identified
above, the Company is exposed to a
number of other risks some of which
are natural disasters beyond the control
of the Company while others relate
to operational matters. These include
fire, floods, machinery break-downs,
technical defects, electrical hazards etc.
Risk management measures in place
to address these situations inter alia
include insurance covers against all such
perils and regular training of fire fighting
squads and conducting fire drills.

CAVEAT
Though the key sources of risk and their
mitigation have been discussed in this
document, no assurance can be given
that the Company is fully protected
against all possible risks. The best
that can be achieved is reasonable
management of risk through a sound
operational framework that defines,
evaluate and mitigate the negative
impacts in a timely manner at multiple
levels.
As detailed above, the Company has
identified various risks it is exposed to
and attempts to mitigate the impact
of such risks to the maximum extent
practically possible. Taking all these
into consideration and by analyzing
all the risks and ensuring the best
form of protection, the Directors have
ensured that the risks the Company
faces are adequately assessed and
managed and pose no untoward threat
to the uninterrupted and profitable
continuance of business.

REPUTATION RISK
Due to operating in the consumer
durables production industry and the
extensive interaction the products
of the Company will have with a vast
number of customers, the Company is
exposed to reputation risk. Among the
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LIQUIDITY RISK

maintain an equitable balance between
the interests of employer and employee
and provide a basis for negotiations
when issues arise. Procedures have also
been laid down to promptly respond to
grievances and staff complaints.

Financial Reports

effects of market fluctuations on net
income. The main exposures are to
liquidity, interest rate and currency risks.
Fluctuation in exchange rates also has an
impact over the Company’s business.
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Singer Industries (Ceylon) PLC ensures to
comply with established best practices
in Corporate Governance and ensures
the highest ethical standards in conduct
of its business. In dealings with their
shareholders, customers, colleagues,
suppliers and other stakeholders the
Board adopts core values of ethical
standards. The Company believes
that the highest standards of integrity
are maintained when such standards
are maintained in business. We have
committed to the highest level of
governance and strive to foster a
culture that values and rewards ethical
standards, personal and corporate
integrity and mutual respect. The Board
of Directors, led by the Chairman, is
responsible for the governance of the
Company and reviews and suggests
improvements to policies to provide
transparency and accountability.
All employees, senior management
and the Board of Directors are required
to embrace this philosophy in the
performance of their official duties and
in other situations that could affect the
Company’s image and it is the duty and
the responsibility to uphold and act in
the best interest of the Company and its
stakeholders in fulfilling its stewardship
obligations.
While referred to in detail in subsequent
sections of this Annual Report, the
Company’s governance philosophy is
practiced in full compliance with the
following Acts, Rules and Regulations:
•

Companies Act No. 07 of 2007

•

Listing Rules of the Colombo Stock
Exchange

•

The Code of Best Practice on
Corporate Governance as jointly
published by the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Sri Lanka
(SEC) and the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Sri Lanka (CA Sri
Lanka).

GOVERNANCE POLICY AND
FRAMEWORK
Governance framework covers both
Corporate Governance and Business
Governance. Both these governance
processes are interdependent and

interrelated. The former safeguard
and ensures the business performance
maintaining a balance between
accountability and assurance of the
business process while the latter enables
the focus on areas of value creation to
the business.
We at Singer Industries (Ceylon) PLC
believes that, successfully run business
enterprises are founded on a set
of fundamental qualities those that
embed transparency, accountability
and responsibility within the core of
its business operation. The Company’s
strong core qualities are translated in
to action to ensure that the Company
remains law abiding, strictly adhering to
the laws and regulations of the country.
From the Board of Directors to the
production floor, we give top priority to
business integrity and accountability to
stakeholders.
Singer Industries (Ceylon) PLC is fully
compliant with the Code of Best
Practices on Corporate Governance
issued jointly by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka and
the Securities and Exchange Commission
as well as the rules published in this
regard by the Colombo Stock Exchange.
This practice mainly covers the following
aspects,
•

Directors and Secretary

•

Directors‘ Remuneration

•

Relationship with Shareholders

•

Accountability and Audit

•

Shareholders

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition
Singer Industries (Ceylon) PLC is headed
by an effective Board of Directors and
comprises of nine (09) Directors including
the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer (CEO). All the Directors are
professionals who have acquired a wealth
of experience and have proven ability in
the fields of Management, Marketing,
Finance, Industrial and Economics. The
Board of Directors is accountable for the
governance of the Company.
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The Chairman and the CEO function as
Executive Directors. The Board comprise
of five (05) Independent Non-Executive
Directors, one (01) Non-Executive
Director and three (03) Executive
Directors.
The profiles of the Chairman, CEO and
other Directors are provided in the
Annual Report on pages 14 and 15.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD
The Board’s main responsibility is
creating and delivering sustainable
shareholder value, within a robust
Corporate Governance structure
that maintains investor confidence
and business integrity. The extent of
compliance with the Code of Best
Practice on Corporate Governance
issued jointly by CA Sri Lanka and
SEC as well as the Rule on Corporate
Governance published by the Colombo
Stock Exchange (CSE), is discussed in the
sections that follow.
Additionally, the Board is committed
to a policy of ‘responsible governance’
through the governance framework of
Singer Group.
The Board endeavours to exercise
effective control over the Company
by formulating and implementing
policies and ensuring their effective
implementation. It is responsible for the
governance of the Company on behalf
of Shareholders, within a framework
of policies and controls that provide
for effective risk assessment and
management. The Board also provides
leadership and articulates the objectives
and strategies of Singer Industries
(Ceylon) PLC, for achieving those
objectives.
Directors dedicate themselves to the
affairs of the Company by attending
Board and Board subcommittee
meetings and making decisions by
circular resolutions. Prior to every Board
meeting, each Director receives a
comprehensive set of Board papers and
any additional information requested
by the Directors. It is the CEO’s duty to
ensure that all members are properly
briefed.
The Board makes every effort to ensure
due compliance to good governance

Apart from the above, the Board holds
the responsibility for followings,
•

Ensure compliance with legal
requirements and ethics

•

Approval of budgets and corporate
plans

•

Approval of Interim and Annual
Financial Statements for publication

•

Deciding and approval of investment
and divestments

BOARD’S INDEPENDENCE
None of the Independent Directors
have held executive responsibilities in
the Company. They have submitted
a declaration confirming their
independence in accordance with
Section 7 of the CSE Listing Regulations
on Corporate Governance as at 31 March
2019. The Non-Executive Directors do
not have any business interest that could
materially interfere with the exercise
of their independent judgments. The
Board Members are permitted to obtain
independent professional advice from
a third party including the Company’s
external auditors and other professional
consultants whenever deemed necessary.
Directors are required to bring an
independent judgment to bear decisions
of the Company. Their duties are to be
performed without any influence from
other persons. The Directors are not a
party to any decisions made on areas

BOARD MEETINGS AND CIRCULAR
RESOLUTIONS
The Board meets on a quarterly basis to
review the performance of the Company
and take strategic decisions or even
more frequently if the necessity arises.
During the period, the Board met five
(05) times. The Board subcommittees
also met on a regular basis. Circular
resolutions are passed as per the
requirements.
Number of Board Meetings
held during the period

-

05

Number of Circular Resolutions passed

05

DIVISION OF RESPONSIBILITIES
BETWEEN THE BOARD, CHAIRMAN
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
The positions of the Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer are separated,
preventing unfettered powers for
decision making in one person. The CEO
functions as the key decisions maker
of the Company with the help of the
Factory Director and the management
team. The Chairman and Board of
Directors play a supervisory and advisory
role and set the policy direction for the
Company.
Board independence from management
is maintained by the presence of NonExecutive and Independent Directors.
These Directors provide a mechanism
to critically review all aspects of the
Company’s operations. They ensure
that no single individual has unfettered
powers of decision making and bring
independent judgments to bear on
issues of strategy, performance and risk.
Both the Chairman and CEO ensure
that good governance is practiced
throughout the organization; and that
both Executive and Non-Executive
Directors have opportunities for effective
participation. The CEO also ensures
that the Board has full knowledge of the
Company’s affairs and facilitates effective
communication with all of the Company’s

stakeholders including government
agencies, suppliers, shareholders,
employees and the general public.

STRATEGIC PLANNING AND
IMPLEMENTATION
The Board is responsible for the strategic
planning process of the Company.
This includes the responsibility for the
formulation of the strategic vision and
mission of the Company, setting the
overall corporate policy and strategy,
monitoring performance and reviewing
risks and major investments. The Board
also takes on the added responsibility of
directing Company performance towards
achieving the best results possible
and increasing shareholder value. The
Board sets the broad parameters of the
Company’s business. The Company’s
business units are then tasked with their
application, in achieving specific targets
and objectives.
The Company’s annual plan addresses
the requirements of the business units
and divisions. This ensures that the entire
Company follows the set plans and
objectives as articulated in the annual
plan. These in turn become the primary
objectives of the management. The
management has the autonomy and
freedom to translate these objectives to
specific goals that are achievable. Key
programmes are identified by the CEO
for each year in line with the annual plan
after they are discussed.

COMPANY SECRETARY
Hayleys Group Services (Private) Limited
provides Company secretarial services
with competent qualified professionals
who are registered as Company
Secretaries. All Directors have access to
the advice and service of the Company
Secretaries as necessary.
Hayleys Group Services (Private) Limited
functions as the Board Secretaries as well
and advices the Board and ensures that
matters concerning the Companies Act,
Board procedures and other applicable
rules and regulations are followed.
They ensure that the proper Board
procedures are followed and the relevant
rules, regulations and requirements are
complied with which are relevant to them
as individual Directors and collectively to
the Board.
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The Company has the adequate number
of Board members with the required
qualifications and experience from a
range of disciplines including financial,
marketing etc.

of personal interests. Transactions of
the Directors and their family members
(arm’s length basis) with the Company
are required to be disclosed.

Financial Reports

practices and makes objective
assessment of the Company’s risks,
performance and prospects. These are
discussed in details in the Chairman’s
Review on page 10 , CEO’s Review on
page 12 , Financial and Operational
Review on page 16, Risk Management
Report on page 18, Audit Committee
Report on page 26, the Remuneration
Committee Report on page 27,
Nomination Committee Report on page
28 and the Annual Report of the Board of
Directors on the Affairs of the Company
on page 32.
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Corporate Governance

While the Board of Directors is ultimately
responsible for the operations and
financial soundness of the Company, the
day-to-day management of the Company
is entrusted to the Factory Director.
There is extensive staff participation
in decision making at all levels, with
strategic recommendations on material
matters flowing to the Board for final
decision.

CHAIRMAN’S ROLE

Financial Reports

The Chairman is responsible for directing
the Board and to be effective. In
practice, this means taking responsibility
for the Board’s composition, ensuring
that the Board focuses on its key tasks
and supports the CEO in managing the
day-to-day running of the Company. The
Chairman is also the ultimate point of
contact for Shareholders, particularly on
corporate governance issues.
The Chairman satisfies himself that
the information available to the Board
is sufficient to make an informed
assessment of the Company’s affairs as
well as to discharge their duties to all
stakeholders.
The Chairman conducts Board meetings
in a manner which ensures effective
participation from all Directors, with their
individual contribution and concerns
objectively assessed prior to making key
decisions while maintaining balance of
power.

ACCOUNTABILITY
A balanced and comprehensive review
of the financial position, performance
and prospects are presented by the
Company in its Annual Report. In
addition, the Company releases quarterly
Interim Financial Statements, and other
communications on a need basis.
The Company has issued a Code of
Ethics applicable to all employees
and established a whistle-blowing
policy to report violations to the Board
and to the Audit Committee. On the
recommendation to the Board by
the Audit Committee subject to the
approval of the shareholders at AGM
external Auditors be reappointed and
Internal Auditors are appointed by the
parent Company review the financial

performance and the effectiveness of
internal control systems.
Procedures exist to ensure that Directors
are provided with timely information on
a quarterly basis or even more frequently
and a clear agenda and papers with
guidance on contents and presentation
for all meetings to facilitate effective
conduct. When the Board finds that the
information provided is insufficient or not
clear, they call for additional information
which is provided.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Audit Committee of the parent
Company, Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC
functions as the Audit Committee to
the Company. The Board has delegated
some responsibilities to the Audit
Committee, which include the following:
•

Ensuring that good financial
reporting systems are in place.

•

Verifying the effectiveness of the
internal control systems and make
sure the internal controls within the
Company are designed to provide
reasonable, though not absolute,
assurance to the Directors and assist
them to monitor the financial position
of the group.

•

Complying with the applicable laws
and regulations.

•

Periodically reviewing the risk
assessment processes and
organizational risk profile.

•

Assessing the independence and
evaluating the performance of
external auditors.

The Audit Committee is empowered
to review and monitor the financial
reporting process of the Company so as
to provide additional assurance on the
reliability of Financial Statements through
a process of independent and objective
review. As such, the Audit Committee
acts as an effective forum in assisting
the Board of Directors in discharging
their responsibilities on ensuring the
quality of financial reporting and related
communication to the Shareholders and
to the public.
As at period-end, the Audit Committee
comprised of three (03) Independent
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Non-Executive Directors of the Board.
The Company Secretaries function as
the Secretaries to the Committee. The
Chief Financial Officer/Compliance
Officer, audit staff of Singer and Hayleys
PLC, representatives of external auditors
and when necessary, the Group Chief
Executive Officer, Group Finance
Director, Hayleys Group Chief Financial
Officer (CFO), and relevant operational
Directors and managers attend the
meetings by invitation.
The Audit Committee’s authority,
responsibilities and specific duties
have been formalised through an
Audit Committee Charter. The Audit
Committee is empowered, among the
other duties, to examine any matters
relating to the financial affairs of the
Company, adequacy of the internal
control procedures, coverage of internal
and external audit programmes,
disclosure of accounting policies and
compliance with Statutory and Corporate
Governance requirements.
The Audit Committee held five (05)
meetings during the period under review
to discuss the reports of the internal and
external auditors and quarterly Financial
Statements for the period.
The detailed Report of the Audit
Committee is given on page 26.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Remuneration Committee of the parent
Company, Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC function
as the Remuneration Committee to
the Company. As at period end, the
Remuneration Committee comprised of
three (03) Non-Executive Directors of the
Company. The Chairman and the Group
CEO participates by invitation. The
Committee is chaired by an Independent
Non-Executive Director. The Singer
Group Finance Director functions as
the Secretary of the Committee. The
Group CEO and the Singer Group
Finance Director assist the Committee
by providing relevant information
and participating in analysis and
deliberations.
The scope of the Remuneration
Committee is to ascertain the fees,
remuneration and perquisites of the
Chairman, CEO, Independent Directors
and the Executive Directors of the
Company. The Remuneration Committee

The remuneration of the Directors
is disclosed on pages 59 and 84 of
this Annual Report and the detailed
Remuneration Committee Report is
given on page 27.

INTERNAL CONTROL
The Company’s Directors are responsible
for instituting a system of internal
controls to ensure the effective
implementation of all policies and
decisions of the Board. This framework is
designed to provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance that all aspects are
safeguarded.
The Company employs personnel across
different levels of operations to apply
these internal controls, while the Singer
Group Internal Audit Department reviews
the effectiveness of such controls.
The Company’s operations are also
subject to review by the Corporate
Internal Audit Division.

RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
The Board uses the Annual General
Meeting (AGM) to communicate with
Shareholders and encourage their
participation. Those unable to attend
may appoint proxies. Each substantially
separate issue is proposed as a separate
resolution at the AGM including the
proposal for the adoption of the report
and accounts. The Chairman ensures
that the Audit Committee is available
to answer any question at the AGM, if
required. Company Secretaries ensure
that all Shareholders’ queries are
answered whenever required.

The feedback from Shareholders is
valued highly by the Board in its quest
to continuously improve corporate
governance practices. It is the policy of
the Board that Shareholders should have
equal access to information. The Board
has adopted a policy of free disclosure of
all material information of the Company
to its Shareholders.
The Company also welcomes the
active participation of Shareholders at
Annual General Meetings and solicits
their views at all times, promoting
healthy dialogue. Where applicable, the
Company implements Shareholders’
suggestions, mainly those presented
at the AGMs. Through the quarterly
and annual publications of Financial
Statements, meetings and other forms
of communication, the Board and the
management constantly interact with
the Shareholders and inform them of the
continuous progress of the Company.

FINANCIAL REPORTING,
TRANSPARENCY AND SUPPLY OF
INFORMATION

The timely publication of quarterly
and Annual Financial Statements, with
comprehensive details beyond the
statutory requirements, has been a
salient feature of our financial reporting
system. The Financial Statements
included in this Annual Report have been
audited by the external auditors, Messrs
KPMG, Chartered Accountants.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAW
The Company has established
procedures to ensure compliance with
all applicable statutory and regulatory
requirements. The Chief Financial Officer
of the Company act as Compliance
Officer and is responsible for ensuring
proper compliance with applicable
laws and regulations. A compliance
checklist is provided to the Board Audit
Committee and Board members in
every quarter by the Compliance Officer
indicating compliance with applicable
laws, regulations etc.
The Company has also issued a Code of
Ethics and Human Resources Policies and
Procedures applicable to all employees.

Financial Statements are prepared
and presented in accordance with the
new Sri Lanka Accounting Standards
(SLFRS/LKAS) issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka.
Financial information is circulated as
appropriate within and outside the
organisation.
The Board receives a standard set of
documents, which are timely, accurate,
relevant and comprehensive. These
papers include a detailed analysis of
financial and non-financial information.
The Board may call for additional
information or clarify issues with any
member of the management team. All
Directors are adequately briefed on
matters arising at Board meetings. The
Secretary and Compliance Officer ensure
that Board papers are circulated in
advance prior to Board meetings.
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The Remuneration Committee also
reviews the policies pertaining to the
remuneration and perquisites of the
Executives of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Financial Reports

also approves the recommendations
made by the CEO of the Company.
Board makes the final decision
based on the considerations of such
recommendations.
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The following table presents the details of the Company’s compliance with Section 7 of the CSE Listing Rules on Corporate
Governance as at 31 March 2019.
Rule No.

Corporate Governance Rule

Details of Compliance

Board of Directors

Corporate Governance

7.10.1

Number of Non-Executive Directors - One-third of the total
number of Directors, subject to a minimum of two.

The Board comprise nine (09) Directors, of which six
(06) are Non-Executive Directors

7.10.2

Number of Independent Directors - One-third of Non-Executive
Directors, subject to a minimum of two.

Five (05) Non-Executive Directors are independent.

7.10.3

Disclosure Relating to Directors’ independence.

Five (05) Independent Non-Executive Directors
have submitted a declaration confirming their
independence.

7.10.5

Remuneration Committee

7.10.5 (a)

Number of Independent Non-Executive Directors in the
Committee to be:

Financial Reports

•

a minimum of two (where a Company has only two Directors
on the Board), or

•

in all other instances majority of whom are to be
independent.

The Committee comprise of three (03) Directors of
whom all are Independent Non-Executive Directors

Separate Committee to be formed for the Company or the
listed Parent’s Remuneration Committee to be used.

Parent Company’s Committee functions as the
Committee to the Company.

Chairman of the Committee to be a Non-Executive Director.

The Chairman of the Committee is an Independent
Non-Executive Director.

7.10.5. (b)

Functions of the Committee.

The Remuneration Committee Report sets out the
functions of the Committee.

7.10.6

Audit Committee

7.10.6. (a)

Number of Independent Non-Executive Directors in the
Committee to be:

7.10.6. (b)

•

a minimum of two (where a Company has only two Directors
on the Board), or

•

in all other instances majority of whom are to be
independent.

The Committee comprises of three (03) Directors
who are Independent Non-Executive Directors.

Separate Committee to be formed for the Company or the
listed Parent’s Committee to be used.

Parent Company’s Committee functions as the
Committee to the Company

Chairman of the Committee to be a Non-Executive Director.

The Chairman of the Committee is an Independent
Non-Executive Director.

Chairman or one member of the Committee to be a member of
a recognized professional accounting body.

The Chairman of the Committee is a member of a
recognized professional accounting body.

CEO and CFO to attend Committee meetings, unless otherwise
determined by the Audit Committee.

CEO and CFO attend by invitation.

Functions of the Committee.

The Audit Committee Report sets out the functions
of the Committee.
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Status of
Compliance

Details of Compliance

9.2.1&

Related Party Transactions
Re-view Committee

Complied

The functions of the Committee are stated in the Report of the Related
Party Transaction Review Committee on page 29.

9.2.2

Composition

Complied

Please refer the Report of the Related Party Transaction Review
Committee on page 29.

9.2.4

Related Party Transactions
Re-view Committee
Meetings

Complied

Met three (03) times during the financial period 2018/2019

9.3.1

Immediate Disclosures

Complied

Please refer Note 33 of the Notes to the Financial Statements on
page 83.

Complied

Please refer Note 33 of the Notes to the Financial Statements on
page 83.

9.2.3

9.3.2(a) & (b) Disclosure of NonRecurrent and Recurrent
Related Party Transactions
9.3.2(C )

The Report by the Related Complied
Party Transaction Review
Committee

Please refer the Report of the Related Party Transaction Review
Committee on page 29.

9.3.2(d)

A Declaration by the
Board of Directors

Please refer the Report of the Directors on page 32 for an affirmative
statement of compliance of the Board.

TRANSPARENCY and BUSINESS
ETHICS
We ensure the transparency in all
public disclosures, as well as in the
way business and communication take
place with all stakeholders. A ‘Whistle
Blowing Policy’, was introduced in 2009
and this has immensely increased the
level of transparency at all levels. The
written Code of Ethics which bound all
employees include the following aspects
•

Exercise honesty, objectivity and
diligence when performing ones
duties.

•

Avoid situations where personal
interest might conflict with the
interest of the Company; and if so,
disclose such interest in advance.

•

Maintain confidentiality of
commercial and price sensitive
information.

•

•

Work within applicable laws and
regulations.
Safeguard the Company’s assets.

Complied

•

Avoid conduct that will reflect badly
on the person concerned or the
Company’s image.

•

Strictly avoid giving or accepting
any kind of bribe, either directly or
indirectly.

•

Strictly avoid making contributions
for political funds, either directly or
indirectly.

•

Strictly avoid any kind of sexual
harassment.

•

Use of Company property including
computers.

•

Non-harassment in the workplace.

•

Environment, safety and health.

•

Security of IT system.

The whistle blowing procedure
introduced by the Company encourages
any employee who suspects wrong doing
at work, whether by management, peers
or any other employee, to raise their
concerns.

OTHER POLICIES
In addition, the Company implements
policies covering the following areas:
•

Recruitment and selection.

•

Financial integrity.
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Preamble

Corporate Governance

The Committee is empowered to review
and monitor the financial reporting
process of Singer Industries (Ceylon) PLC
so as to provide additional assurance on
the reliability of the Financial Statements
through a process of independent and
objective review. As such, the Audit
Committee acts as an effective forum
in assisting the Board of Directors in
discharging their responsibilities on
ensuring the quality of financial reporting
and related communications to the
shareholders and the public.
Audit Committee of the parent
Company, Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC act as
the Audit Committee of the Company.

Financial Reports

Composition of the
Committee
As at period-end, the Audit Committee
comprised of three (03) Independent
Non-Executive Directors of the Board
namely;
Mr. Dilip K. De Silva Wijeyeratne Chairman/ Independent Non-Executive
Director (appointed w.e.f. 01 April 2018)
Mr. Deepal Sooriyaarachchi Independent Non-Executive Director
Mr. M. Hisham Jamaldeen - Independent
Non-Executive Director
Mr. Ranil De Silva - Independent NonExecutive Director (resigned w.e.f. 31
March 2018)
Hayleys Group Services (Private)
Limited functions as the secretary to the
committee. The Group Finance Director
of the parent Company, Compliance
Officer, Internal Audit Staff, the Group
Chief Executive Officer and when
necessary the representatives of External
Auditors and relevant managers attend
the meetings by invitation.

Responsibilities and Duties of
the Committee
The Audit Committee’s authority,
responsibilities and specific duties
have been formalised through an Audit
Committee Charter. By this, the Audit
Committee is empowered among
other things, to examine any matters
relating to the financial affairs of Singer
Industries (Ceylon) PLC and to review
the adequacy of the internal control
procedures, coverage of internal and
external audit programmes, disclosure of
Accounting Policies and Compliance with
Statutory and Corporate Governance
requirements.
The Committee also provides a forum
for the impartial review of the reports
of internal and external audits and to
take into consideration findings and
recommendations stated therein relating
to significant business risks and control
issues.
The Audit Committee reviews significant
business risks and internal control
issues and suggests where necessary
appropriate remedial measures.
The Committee along with the Board,
Internal Audit and External Audit
review the annual and quarterly
financial results to ensure compliance
with mandatory, statutory and other
regulatory requirements laid down by the
authorities.
The Committee reviews the Compliance
Officer’s report on the Company’s
compliance with the applicable laws and
regulations, including internal policy
codes of conduct of its employees,
monitors the Company’s compliance
with the applicable laws and regulations,
including any internal policy codes of
conduct of its employees.
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Meetings of the Committee
During the period, five (05) Audit
Committee meetings were held to
discuss the reports of the internal and
external auditors and quarterly accounts.
The final accounts were also discussed at
the meeting held on 14 May 2019. The
minutes of the meetings were tabled at
the meetings of the Board of Directors
for information and necessary action.

External Auditors
The Audit Committee has recommended
to the Board of Directors that Messrs
KPMG, Chartered Accountants be reappointed as the external auditors of the
Company for the financial year ending
31 March 2020 as a deemed provision in
terms of Section 158 of the Companies
Act No. 7 of 2007.

(Sgd.)
Mr. Dilip K. De Silva Wijeyeratne
Chairman - Audit Committee
Colombo.
16 May 2019
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Mr. D. Sooriarachchi - Independent NonExecutive Director
Mr. D.K. De Silva Wijeyeratne Independent Non-Executive Director
(appointed on 14 May 2018)
Mr. Ranil De Silva - Independent NonExecutive Director (resigned w.e.f. 31
March 2018)
The brief profiles of the Directors are
given on pages 14 and 15 of this Annual
Report.
Mr. Lalith Yatiwella, Group Finance
Director functions as the Secretary to the
Committee.
The Chairman and the Managing
Director assist the Committee by
providing the relevant information
and participate in its analysis and
deliberations except when their own
compensation packages are reviewed.

The scope of the Committee

A primary objective of compensation
packages is to attract and retain a
highly qualified and experienced
work force, and reward performances.
These compensation packages should
provide compensation appropriate for
each business within the Group and
commensurate with each employee’s
level of experience and contribution,
bearing in mind the business
performance and long-term Shareholder
returns.

Meetings
The Committee meets from time to time
and reviews the Group’s remuneration
and fee structures to assure alignment
with strategic priorities and with
compensation offered by competitor
companies.
The Committee met one (01) time during
the period.

(Sgd.)
Mr. M.H. Jamaldeen
Chairman - Remuneration Committee
Colombo
16 May 2019

The scope of the Committee is to look
into fees, remuneration and perquisites
of the Chairman, Group Chief Executive
Officer, Independent Directors and the
Executive Directors of the Board of the
Company including alternate Directors
and approve recommendations made by
the Chairman.
The Committee also reviews the policies
pertaining to the remuneration and
perquisites of the executives of the
Company.
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Mr. M.H Jamaldeen - Chairman/
Independent Non-Executive Director

Remuneration Policy

Financial Reports

The Remuneration Committee of the
parent Company Singer (Sri Lanka)
PLC functions as the Committee to the
Company and it consists of three (03)
Independent Non-Executive Directors.

Management Reports
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Nomination Committee of the parent
Company, Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC
functions as the Committee for the
Company.
The following Directors serve on the
Committee,

Corporate Governance

•

Review the structure size,
compensation and competencies
of the Board and make
recommendations to the Board with
regard to any changes.

•

Recommend the requirements
of new expertise and succession
arrangements for retiring Directors.

•

Recommend or any other matter
referred by the Board of Directors.

Mr. A.M. Pandithage - Chairman Executive Director
Mr. K.D.D. Perera - Non-Executive
Director
Mr. M.H. Jamaldeen - Independent NonExecutive Director
Mr. Ranil De Silva - Independent NonExecutive Director (Resigned w.e.f. 31
March 2018)

Financial Reports

Mr. H.A. Pieris - Group CEO - Executive
Director (Resigned w.e.f. 31 October
2018)
Brief profiles of the Directors are given
on pages 14 and 15 of the Annual
Report.

Meetings
During the reporting period, Nomination
Committee meetings were not held
whereas appointments were approved by
the Board via circular resolutions.

The duties of the Committee
•

Consideration of making any
appointment of new Directors or reelecting current Directors.

•

Provide advice and recommendations
to the Board on any such
appointment.

•

Review criteria such as qualifications,
experience and key attributes
required for eligibility to be
considered for appointment to
the Board and Key Management
Personnel in the Company.

•

Consider if a Director is able to and
has been adequately carrying out his
or her duties as a Director taking into
consideration the Directors’ number
of listed Company Boards on which
the Director is represented and other
principal commitments.

Re-election of Directors at
the Annual General Meeting
In terms of Article 24 (4) of the Articles of
Association of the Company, Mr. V.G.K.
Vidyaratne retires by rotation and being
eligible himself for re-election.
In terms of Article 24 (4) of the Articles
of Association of the Company, Mr. S.C.
Ganegoda retires by rotation and being
eligible himself for re-election.
In terms of Article 24 (10) of the Articles
of Association of the Company the
Shareholders will be requested to elect
Messrs D.K. De Silva Wijeyeratne and
M.H. Wijewardene who were appointed
to the Board since the last Annual
General Meeting, Directors.
The recommendations were approved by
the Board.

Appreciation
I appreciate the contribution made by
Mr. H A Pieris who served as a member
of the Committee and resigned w.e.f.
31 October 2018 and also I appreciate
the contribution made by Mr. D.T.R. de
Silva who served as a member of the
Committee and resigned w.e.f. 31 March
2018.
I wish to take this opportunity to thank all
members who served in the Committee
and for their contribution to the
deliberations of the Committee during
the period.

(Sgd.)
Mr. A.M. Pandithage
Chairman - Nomination Committee
16 May 2019
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Related Party Transaction Review
Committee Report

The Related Party Transactions Review
Committee comprises of three (03)
Independent Non-Executive Directors
and one (01) Executive Director. The
following Directors serve on the
Committee.

Obtain knowledge or expertise
to assess all aspects of proposed
related party transactions where
necessary including obtaining
appropriate professional and expert
advice from suitably qualified
persons.

•

To recommend, where necessary, to
the Board and obtain their approval
prior to the execution of any related
party transaction.

•

To monitor that all related party
transactions of the entity are
transacted on normal commercial
terms and are not prejudicial to the
interests of the entity and its minority
Shareholders.

•

Meet with the management, internal
auditors/external auditors as
necessary to carry out the assigned
duties.

•

To review the transfer of resources,
services or obligations between
related parties regardless of whether
a price is charged.

Mr. H.A. Peiris - Executive Director
(resigned w.e.f. 31 October 2018)

•

The above composition is in compliance
with the provisions of the code regarding
the composition of the Related Party
Transactions Review Committee.

To review the economic and
commercial substance of both
recurrent/non recurrent related party
transactions.

•

To monitor and recommend the
acquisition or disposal of substantial
assets between related parties,
including obtaining ‘competent
independent advice’ from
independent professional experts
with regard to the value of the
substantial asset of the related party
transaction.

Mr. Deepal Sooriyaarachchi - Chairman/
Independent Non-Executive Director
Mr. D.K. De Silva Wijeyeratne Independent Non-Executive Director
(appointed w.e.f. 14 May 2018)
Mr. M.H. Wijewardene - Executive
Director (appointed w.e.f. 05 February
2019)
Mr. J.A. Setuvakalar - Independent NonExecutive Director (Represents Singer
Finance (Lanka) PLC by invitation)
Mr. Ranil De Silva - Independent NonExecutive Director (resigned w.e.f. 31
March 2018)

Brief profiles of the members are given
on pages 14 and 15 of this Annual
Report.
Hayleys Group Services (Private) Limited
functions as the Secretary to the Related
Party Transactions Review Committee.

The duties of the Committee
•

To review in advance all proposed
related party transactions of the
group either prior to the transaction
being entered into or, if the
transaction is expressed to be
conditional on such review, prior to
the completion of the transaction.

About Us

Meetings
The Committee met three (03) times
during the period under review.

Reporting to the Board
The Minutes of the RPTRC meetings are
tabled at Board meetings enabling all
Board members to have access to same.

(Sgd.)
Mr. Deepal Sooriyaarachchi
Chairman - Related Party Transactions
Review Committee
Colombo
16 May 2019

Task of the Committee
The Committee reviewed the related
party transactions and their compliances
in Singer Group Companies including
Singer Industries (Ceylon) PLC.
The Committee in its review process
recognized the adequate of the content
and quality of the information forwarded
to its members by the management.
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•

Seek any information the Committee
requires from the management,
employees or external parties with
regard to any transaction entered
into with a related party.

Corporate Governance

Composition of the Board
Related Party Transactions
Review Committee

•

Financial Reports

Parent Company’s Related Party
Transactions Review Committee (RPTRC)
functions as the RPTRC Committee to
the Company.

29

“A commitment to deliver strong financial returns
to all stakeholders.”

32
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Annual Report of the Board of Directors
on the Affairs of the Company

Management Reports

The Board of Directors of Singer
Industries (Ceylon) PLC has pleasure in
presenting their Report on the affairs of
the Company together with the audited
Financial Statements of the Company for
the fifteen months ended 31 March 2019.

Review of the Period

Corporate Governance
Financial Reports

The Chairman’s Review (on pages 10 and
11), and the Chief Executive Officer’s
Review (on pages 12 and 13), describe
the Company’s affairs and mentions
important events that occurred during
the period and up to the date of this
report. The financial review on pages 16
to 17 elaborates the financial results of
the Company. These reports together
with the Audited Financial Statements
reflect the state of the affairs of the
Company.

Principal Activities
The principal activities of the Company
are the assembly of sewing machines and
the manufacture of cabinets and stands
for sewing machines.

Financial Statements
The Financial Statements prepared in
compliance with the requirements of
Section 151 of the Companies Act No.
07 of 2007 duly certified by the Chief
Financial Officer (CFO) and approved
by the Board of Directors is given on
pages 41 to 85 in this Annual Report.
The Financial Statements are prepared
in accordance with SLFRS/LKASs, the
Accounting Standards issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Sri Lanka to coverage with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and
International Accounting Standards (IAS).

Independent Auditor’s Report

the Financial Statements on pages 45 to 55. The Company has consistently applied
the Accounting Policies as set out in Note 03 to all periods presented in these
Financial Statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment
During the period under review, the Company invested a sum of Rs. 7,491,480/(2017 – Rs. 182,335/-) in machinery, computer and other equipment.
Details of property, plant and equipment and their movements are given in Note 11 to
the Financial Statements respectively.

Market Value of Properties
The freehold property of the Company is valued by an Independent Qualified Valuer
when there is a substantial difference between the fair value and the carrying amount
of the freehold property. Accordingly, the freehold property of the Company was
revalued on 30 March 2019. The details of the revaluation are given in Notes 11 and 12
to the Financial Statements on pages 62 to 66 in this Annual Report.

Investments
The Company has invested Rs. 54 million (2017 - Rs. 54 million) in the Stated Capital of
Reality (Lanka) Ltd. And accounted as an Equity Accounted Investee.
Details of the investment in Equity Accounted Investee are given in Note 13 to the
Financial Statements on pages 66 and 67.

Directors’ Responsibility
The Statement of the Directors’ Responsibility is given on page 37 of this Annual
Report.

Corporate Governance
The Company has complied with Corporate Governance rules laid down under the
Listing Rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange. The Corporate Governance Section on
pages 20 to 25 describes the good Corporate Governance principles adopted by the
Company.

Profit and Appropriations
31.03.2019

31.12.2017

Rs.

Rs.

Company profit before income tax expense after
deducting all expenses, known liabilities and
depreciation amounts to

The Company’s Auditors Messrs KPMG,
Chartered Accountants performed the
audit on the Financial Statements for the
fifteen months ended 31 March 2019 and
the independent Auditor’s Report on the
Financial Statements is given on pages
38 to 40 in this Annual Report.

29,012,922

70,931,236

From this has to be deducted the income tax expense
(Refer Note 09 to the accounts)

(7,983,585)

(2,521,717)

To this has to be deducted/added the Other
Comprehensive Income

2,776,518

(923,045)

Accounting Policies

Making a profit for the period attributable to equity
holders of

23,805,855

67,486,475

To this has to be added the balance brought forward
from previous period of

391,203,495

372,743,695

The Accounting Policies adopted in
preparation of the Financial Statements
are provided in details in the Notes to
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Rs.

Rs.

To this has to be added the Transfer from revaluation
reserve

3,522,136

2,129,116

To this has to be added the Transfer from Investment
Property to retained earnings

61,785,000

-

480,316,488

442,359,286

Leaving a total available for Appropriation of:
Following Appropriation has been Proposed:
Proposed Dividend - Dividend per share 2019 –
Rs. 1.57 (2017 - Rs. 13.30)
Balance to be carried forward by the Company of

15,700,597

51,155,791

464,615,891

391,203,495

Reserves
Company reserve and retained earnings as at 31 March 2019 amounted to Rs. 1,249
million vs Rs. 1,159 million as at 31 December 2017.

Directors’ Remuneration
Aggregate remuneration paid to the
Executive and Non-Executive Directors
during the financial period is given in
Note 33.2 to the Financial Statements on
pages 83 to 84.

Directors’ Indemnity and
Insurance
The ultimate Parent of the Company,
Hayleys PLC has obtained a Directors
and Officers liability insurance from
Orient Insurance Ltd, providing
worldwide cover to indemnify all past,
present and future Directors and Officers
(D & O) of the Group. The limit on
liability of the cover is USD 5.0 million
per annum at a premium of Rs. 8.3
million.

Board Committees

The break-up and the movement are shown in the Statement of Changes in Equity in
the Financial Statements.

Audit Committee

Stated Capital

The Audit Committee of the parent
Company Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC
functions as the Audit Committee to
Singer Industries (Ceylon) PLC.

As per the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007, the Stated Capital of the Company was
Rs. 100,003,800/- as at 31 March 2019 (Rs. 38,463,000/- as at 31 December 2017). The
details are given in Note 22 to the Financial Statements on page 71. The number of
shares in issue of the Company increased from 3,846,300 ordinary shares to 10,000,380
ordinary shares as a result of the capitalization of reserves made on 11 September
2018.

Events Occurring after the Reporting Date
The Directors have approved a final dividend of Rs. 1.57 per ordinary share amounting
to Rs. 15.7 million for the fifteen months ended 31 March 2019 to be paid on 03
June 2019. In accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standard No. 10 on “Event after
reporting period”, the proposed final dividend has not been recognized as a liability
at the reporting date.

The members and the composition of
the members are given on page 26 under
the Audit Committee Report.
The Report of the Audit Committee
on page 26 set out the manner of
compliance by the Company in
accordance with the requirements
of the Rule 7.10 of the Rules of the
Colombo Stock Exchange on Corporate
Governance.
Remuneration Committee

Ultimate Parent Company
Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC is the parent Company of Singer Industries (Ceylon) PLC.
Hayleys PLC is the ultimate parent Company of Singer Industries (Ceylon) PLC with
effect from 15 September 2017.

Statutory Payments
The declaration relating to statutory payments is made in the Statement of Directors’
Responsibility on page 37.

Interest Register
Details of transactions with Director-related entities are disclosed in Note 33 to the
Financial Statements on pages 83 to 85 and have been declared at the Board meeting,
pursuant to Section 192 (2) of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007. Directors’ interest in
shares are given in the later part of this Report.

Remuneration Committee of the
parent Company Singer (Sri Lanka)
PLC functions as the Remuneration
Committee of Singer Industries (Ceylon)
PLC.
The members and the composition
of the members are given on page 27
under the Report of the Remuneration
Committee.
The Report of the Remuneration
Committee on page 27 contains
a statement of the remuneration
policy. The details of the aggregate
remuneration paid to the Executive and
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Non-Executive Directors during the
financial period are given in Note 33.2 on
page 84 to the Financial Statements.
Nomination Committee
Nomination Committee of the parent
Company Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC
functions as the Nomination Committee
of Singer Industries (Ceylon) PLC.

Corporate Governance

The members and the composition
of the members are given on page 28
under the Report of the Nomination
Committee.

Financial Reports

The Report of the Nomination
Committee on page 28 set out the
manner of compliance by the Company
in accordance with the requirements of
the Code of Best Practice on Corporate
Governance issued jointly by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri
Lanka and the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Sri Lanka.

share, dividend pay-out and net asset value per share are given in financial highlights
on page 06 and ten year at a glance on page 87 in this Annual Report.

Directorate and Shareholdings
The names of the Directors of the Company as at 31 March 2019 and their brief
profiles are given on pages 14 and 15 in this Annual Report.
In terms of Article 24 (4) of the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. V.G.K.
Vidyaratne retires by rotation and being eligible himself for re-election.
In terms of Article 24 (4) of the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. S.C.
Ganegoda retires by rotation and being eligible himself for re-election.
Mr. D.K. De Silva Wijeyeratne has been appointed to the Board on 01 May 2018 and
Mr. M.H. Wijewardene has been appointed to the Board on 01 November 2018.
In terms of Article 24 (10) of the Articles of Association of the Company the
Shareholders will be requested to elect Messrs D.K. De Silva Wijeyeratne and M.H.
Wijewardene who were appointed to the Board since the last Annual General
Meeting, Directors.
Shareholdings of the Directors and the Chief Executive Officer at the beginning of the
period and as at the end of the period are as follows:
No. of Shares

Related Party Transactions Review
Committee
Related Party Transactions Review
Committee of the parent Company
Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC functions as
the Related Party Transactions Review
Committee of Singer Industries (Ceylon)
PLC.
The members and the composition
of the members are given on page 29
under the Report of the Related Party
Transactions Review Committee.
The Related Party Transactions Review
Committee assists the Board in
reviewing all related party transactions in
accordance with the requirements of the
Code of Best Practice on related party
transactions and the CSE Listing Rules.
The Board confirms that the related party
transactions in compliance with the CSE
Listing Rules.

Share Information and
Substantial Shareholdings
The distribution of shareholding, public
holding percentage, market value of
shares, top twenty largest Shareholders
and the percentage held by each of
them are disclosed on pages 89 to 91.

As at

As at

01.01.2018

31.03.2019

Mr. A.M. Pandithage

-

-

Mr. S.C. Ganegoda

-

-

100

260

Mr. M.H. Jamaldeen

-

-

Mr. N.L.S. Joseph

-

-

Name of the Director

Mr. V.G.K. Vidyaratne

Mr. K.D.G. Gunaratne

-

-

Mr. K.D. Kospelawatta

200

520

Mr. D.K. De Silva Wijeyeratne

-

-

Mr. M.H. Wijewardene

-

-

The Directors’ shareholding increased as a result of capitalization of reserves made on
11 September 2018 in the ratio of 8:5 ordinary shares held as at 11 September 2018.

Independence of Directors
In accordance with Rule 7.10.2 (b) of the Colombo Stock Exchange (CSE) Listing Rules,
Mr. S.C Ganegoda, Mr. M.H. Jamaldeen, Mr. V.G.K. Vidyaratne, Mr. Noel Joseph, Mr.
Gamini Gunaratne and Mr. D.K. De Silva Wijeyeratne who are Non-Executive Directors
of the Company, has submitted signed and dated declaration as per the specimen
given in Appendix 7 A of Continuing Listing requirements of CSE.

The earnings per share, dividends per
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Mr. G.J. Walker has resigned as a
Director of the Company on 04 July 2018.
Consequently, Mr. A.C.M. Irzan ceased
to be an Alternate Director to Mr. G.J.
Walker on 04 July 2018.

(i) Mr. M.H. Jamaldeen is nevertheless
independent on the following basis:

(iv) Mr. K.D.G. Gunaratne is nevertheless
independent on the following basis:

Mr. Asoka Peiris has resigned as a
Director of the Company on 31 October
2018.

a) His high standing in society and
business sector.

a) His high standing in business
sector.

b) His experience and knowledge
particularly in the field of
Economics will continue to be an
asset to the Company.

b) His experience and knowledge
particularly in the field of
Accounting will continue to be an
asset to the Company.

c) He does not participate in
executive decision making.

c) He does not participate in
executive decision making.

Although, Mr. V.G.K. Vidyaratne has not
met the criteria mentioned in items (g) of
Rule 7.10.4 of the CSE Rules, the Board
of Directors of the Company is of the
opinion that;

Although, Mr. D.K. De Silva Wijeyeratne
has not met the criteria mentioned in
items (g) of Rule 7.10.4 of the CSE Rules,
the Board of Directors of the Company is
of the opinion that;

(ii) Mr. V.G.K. Vidyaratne is nevertheless
independent on the following basis:

(iv) Mr. D.K. De Silva Wijeyeratne is
nevertheless independent on the
following basis:

a) His high standing in business
sector.
b) His experience and knowledge
particularly in the field of
Accounting will continue to be an
asset to the Company.
c) He does not participate in
executive decision making.
Although, Mr. N.L.S. Joseph has not met
the criteria mentioned in items (g) of
Rule 7.10.4 of the CSE Rules, the Board
of Directors of the Company is of the
opinion that;

a) His high standing in business
sector.
b) His experience and knowledge
particularly in the field of
Accounting will continue to be an
asset to the Company.
c) He does not participate in
executive decision making.

Independent Non-Executive
Directors
Mr. M.H. Jamaldeen

(iii) Mr. N.L.S. Joseph is nevertheless
independent on the following basis:

Mr. V.G.K. Vidyaratne

a) His high standing in business
sector.

Mr. K.D.G. Gunaratne

b) His experience and knowledge
particularly in the field of
Accounting will continue to be an
asset to the Company.

Directors who have resigned
during the period

c) He does not participate in
executive decision making.

Employment
The number of persons employed by the
Company as at 31 March 2019 was 76
(2017 - 83).

Donations
During the period, donations amounting
to Rs. 30,000/- (2017 - Rs. 30,000/-) were
made by the Company.
During the period no donations were
paid to Government approved Charities
by the Company.

Auditors
The Financial Statements for the period
under review were audited by Messrs
KPMG, Chartered Accountants.
M/s KPMG, Chartered Accountants are
deemed re-appointed as Auditors for the
year 2019/2020 in terms of Section 158 of
the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007.
A resolution proposing the Directors
be authorized to determine the
Auditors’ remuneration will be put to
the Shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting.
The audit related fees paid to the
Auditors by the Company are disclosed
in Note 08 on page 59 in this Annual
Report.

Mr. N.L.S. Joseph

Mr. D.K. De Silva Wijeyeratne

Mr. Ranil De Silva has resigned as a
Director of the Company on 31 March
2018.

As far as the Directors are aware, the
Auditors do not have any relationship or
interest in the Company.
The Audit Committee reviews the
appointment of the Auditors, its
effectiveness and its relationship with
the Company including the level of
audit and non-audit fees paid to the
Auditors. Details on the work of the
Audit Committee are set out in the Audit
Committee Report.
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Although, Mr. K.D.G. Gunaratne has not
met the criteria mentioned in items (g) of
Rule 7.10.4 of the CSE Rules, the Board
of Directors of the Company is of the
opinion that;

Financial Reports

Although, Mr. M.H. Jamaldeen has not
met the criteria mentioned in item (g) of
Rule 7.10.4 of the CSE Rules, the Board
of Directors of the Company is of the
opinion that ;
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Annual Report of the Board of Directors on the Affairs of the Company
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Notice of Meeting
The Annual General Meeting will be
held at Hayleys PLC, Conference Room,
No. 400 Deans Road, Colombo 10 on
Wednesday, 26 June 2019 at 12.00 noon.
The Notice of the Annual General
Meeting of the Shareholders is on page
93.

Corporate Governance

For and on behalf of the Board,

(Sgd.)
Mr. A.M. Pandithage
Chairman

Financial Reports

(Sgd.)
Mr. M.H. Wijewardene
Managing Director

(Sgd.)
Hayleys Group Services (Private)
Limited
Secretaries
Colombo
16 May 2019.
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The Board accepts responsibility for
the integrity and objectivity of the
Financial Statements presented for
the fifteen months ended 31 March
2019. The Directors confirm that in
preparing the Financial Statements,
appropriate accounting policies have
been selected and applied consistently
while reasonable and prudent judgments
have been made so that the form and
substance of transactions are properly
reflected.
They also confirm that the Financial
Statements have been prepared and
presented in accordance with the Sri
Lanka Accounting Standards (SLFRS/
LKAS), Companies Act No. 07 of 2007
and the listing rules of the Colombo
Stock Exchange. Further, the Financial
Statements provide the information
required by the Companies Act and
the listing rules of the Colombo Stock
Exchange.
The Directors are of the opinion, based
on their knowledge of the Company, key
operations and specific inquiries that
adequate resources exist to support the
Company on a going concern basis over
the next year. These Financial Statements
have been prepared on that basis.

The external Auditors, Messrs KPMG
who will be reappointed as the Auditors
of the Company at the Annual General
Meeting were provided with every
opportunity to undertake the inspections
they considered appropriate to enable
them to form their opinion on the
Financial Statements. The report of the
Auditors, shown on pages 38 to 40 sets
out their responsibilities in relation to the
Financial Statements.

Compliance Report
The Directors confirm that to the
best of their knowledge, all statutory
payments relating to employees and the
Government that were due in respect of
the Company and its Subsidiaries as at
the Balance Sheet date have been paid
or where relevant, provided for.
By order of the Board

(Sgd.)
HAYLEYS GROUP SERVICES
(PRIVATE) LIMITED
Secretaries
16 May 2019.

The Directors have taken reasonable
measures to safeguard the assets of
the Group and, in that context, have
instituted appropriate systems of internal
control with a view to preventing and
detecting fraud and other irregularities.
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The Directors are also responsible, under
Section 148, for ensuring that proper
accounting records are kept to enable,
determination of financial position with
reasonable accuracy, preparation of
Financial Statements and audit of such
Statements to be carried out readily and
properly.

The Board of Directors has declared
final dividend for the period ended
31 March 2019 in terms of the Articles
of Association of the Company and in
line with Section 56 of the Companies
Act No. 07 of 2007 (Act) payable on 03
June 2019 and being satisfied based on
the information available to it, that the
Company would satisfy the solvency test
immediately after such distribution in
accordance with Section 57 of the Act
and have sought a certificate of solvency
from the Auditors.

Financial Reports

The Directors are responsible under
Sections 150, 151 and 171 (3) of the
Companies Act No. 07 of 2007, to ensure
compliance with the requirements
set out therein to prepare Financial
Statements for each financial year/period
giving a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company as at the end of
the financial year/period and of the profit
and loss of the Company and the Group
for the financial year/period.
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To the Shareholders of Singer
Industries (Ceylon) PLC

Corporate Governance

Report on the Audit of the Financial
Statements
Opinion

Financial Reports

We have audited the Financial
Statements of Singer Industries (Ceylon)
PLC (“the Company”), which comprise
the statement of financial position as at
31 March 2019, and the Statement of
Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive
Income, Statement of Changes in
Equity and Statement of Cash Flows
for the period then ended, and notes
to the Financial Statements, including
a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes set
out on pages from 41 to 85.
In our opinion, the accompanying
Financial Statements of the Company
give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Company as at 31 March
2019, and of their financial performance
and cash flows for the period then ended
in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting
Standards.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance
with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards
(SLAuSs). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section
of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code
of Ethics issued by CA Sri Lanka (Code
of Ethics), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the Financial Statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Financial Statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.
01.Carrying value of Inventory
Risk Description

Our response

Refer to Note 3.9 for accounting policy and
Note 14 to these Financial Statements.

Our audit procedures included:

The Company has recognized a total
inventory provision of Rs. 16,021,131 in
relation to the total inventory value at Rs.
156,379,817 as at 31 March 2019.
The Company has significant levels of
inventories and judgments are taken with
regard to categorization of inventories into
obsolete and/or slow moving and which
should be considered for the provision of
impairment. Estimates are then involved in
arriving at provisions against cost in respect
of slow moving and obsolete inventories to
arrive at valuation based on lower of cost
and net realizable value.
Given the level of judgments and estimates
involved carrying value of inventory has
been considered as a key audit matter.

• Challenging the management with regard
to the calculation methodology, the basis
for provision and the processes with
respect to inventory provision.
• Testing the design, implementation
and operating effectiveness of the key
controls management has established for
provision computations and to ensure the
accuracy of the inventory provision.
• Assessing the adequacy of, and
movements in, inventory provisions
held, by recalculating a sample of items
included within the provision to ensure
appropriate basis of valuation.
• On a sample basis, testing the carrying
value of inventories with sales prices
subsequent to the reporting period.
• Evaluating the appropriateness of
the assumptions used based on our
knowledge and information of the client.

02. Revaluation of the land and buildings and Investment property
Risk Description

Our response

Refer to Note 3.2 and 3.3 for accounting
policy and Note 11 and 12 to these
Financial Statements.

Our audit procedures included:

The Company has recorded a revaluation
gain of Rs. 175,974,496 by revaluing its land
and buildings and Rs. 26,350,000 as a fair
value gain on investment property as at 31
March 2019.
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• Assessing the appropriateness of the
key assumptions used against externally
published market comparable or industry
data where available.

Our response

Management’s assessment of fair value
of these land, buildings and investment
properties is based on valuations
performed by a qualified independent
property valuer in accordance with
recognised industry standards.

• Assessing the objectivity, independence,
competence and qualifications of the
external valuer.
• Assessing the adequacy of the
disclosures in the Financial Statements.

Estimating the fair value is a complex
process which involves a significant degree
of judgment and estimates in respect of
price per perch of the land, capitalization
rates, value per square feet, diversity of
locations and nature of the properties.
We identified assessing the fair value of
land, buildings and investment properties
owned by the Company as a key audit
matter due to the complexity of the
valuation method, subjectivity of the
significant judgments and estimations
involved.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the Financial
Statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an Auditor’s
Report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance
with SLAuSs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these
Financial Statements.
As part of an audit in accordance
with SLAuSs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

Other Information
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the
Financial Statements and our Auditor’s Report thereon.
Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

• Identify and assess the risks of
material misstatement of the Financial
Statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Management is responsible for the preparation of Financial Statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards, and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
Financial Statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

• Obtain an understanding of internal
control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company and the Company’s internal
control.

In preparing the Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures
made by management.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s and
the Company’s financial reporting process.

• Conclude on the appropriateness
of management’s use of the going
concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the
Financial Statements
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02. Revaluation of the land and buildings and Investment property
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related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in
our Auditor’s Report to the related
disclosures in the Financial Statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our
Auditor’s Report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Financial Reports

• Evaluate the overall presentation,
structure and content of the Financial
Statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the Financial Statements
represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements
As required by section 163 (2) of the
Companies Act No. 07 of 2007, we
have obtained all the information and
explanations that were required for the
audit and, as far as appears from our
examination, proper accounting records
have been kept by the Company.
CA Sri Lanka membership number of
the engagement partner responsible for
signing this independent auditor’s report
is 3272.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Colombo, Sri Lanka
16 May 2019

We communicate with those charged
with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged
with governance with a statement
that we have complied with ethical
requirements in accordance with the
Code of Ethics regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with
those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the
Financial Statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters
in our Auditor’s Report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such
communication.
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Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income

5

Cost of sales
Gross loss

About Us

months ended

months ended

2019

2017

Rs.

Rs.

786,935,376

646,578,610

(804,489,169)

(651,066,854)

(17,553,793)

(4,488,244)

Other income

6

24,621,892

10,801,523

Change in fair value of investment property

12

26,350,000

50,000,000

(14,765,918)

(7,344,032)

Administrative expenses
Distribution costs

(6,707,990)

(2,160,250)

Operating profit

11,944,191

46,808,997

Finance income

21,657,875

16,245,350

Finance cost

(7,999,174)

(129,372)

13,658,701

16,115,978

Net finance income

7

Share of profit of equity accounted investee (net of income tax )

13

3,410,030

8,006,262

Profit before taxation

8

29,012,922

70,931,237

Income tax expense

9

(7,983,585)

(2,521,717)

21,029,337

68,409,520

Profit for the period
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

175,974,496

-

Remeasurement of defined benefit liability

25

3,856,275

(1,282,007)

Related tax

9.3

(50,352,616)

(232,066,075)

Other comprehensive income for the period, net of tax

129,478,155

(233,348,082)

Total comprehensive income/ (loss) for the period

150,507,492

(164,938,562)

2.10

6.84

Revaluation of property, plant and equipment

Basic earnings per share

23.1.1

10

The Accounting Policies and Notes on pages 45 through 85 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
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31-Mar-19

31-Dec-17

Rs.

Rs.

11
12
13
17

1,121,724,420
295,000,000
71,958,788
788,176
1,489,471,384

947,370,499
200,000,000
68,548,758
853,453
1,216,772,710

14
15
17
18
19
20
21

140,358,686
84,704,380
3,220,456
4,847,793
7,855,599
142,792,777
2,316,053
386,095,744
1,875,567,128

97,605,972
101,031,218
1,920,043
3,501,671
5,119,374
122,904,845
17,933,576
350,016,699
1,566,789,409

22
23
23

100,003,800
707,143,010
541,800,738
1,348,947,548

38,463,000
655,522,579
503,843,536
1,197,829,115

24
25

298,569,313
53,737,137
352,306,450

238,640,772
51,524,079
290,164,851

26
16
27
28
29
21

48,064,111
1,856,435
13,142,741
1,861,886
60,000,000
49,387,957
174,313,130
526,619,580
1,875,567,128

59,259,030
5,552,346
7,638,739
1,168,352
5,176,976
78,795,443
368,960,294
1,566,789,409

As at
Note
Assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investment property
Investment in equity accounted investee
Other receivables
Non - current assets
Inventories
Amounts dues from related companies
Other receivables
Prepayments
Income tax recoverable
Investments in fixed deposits
Cash and cash equivalents
Current assets
Total assets
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Stated capital
Capital reserves
Revenue reserves
Total equity
Liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Retirement benefit obligations
Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Amounts due to related party
Provisions
Dividend payable
Interest - bearing loans and borrowings
Bank overdraft
Current liabilities
Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

The Accounting Policies and Notes on pages 45 through 85 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
I certify that the Financial Statements of the Company comply with the requirements of the Companies Act No. 07of 2007.
(Sgd.)
G.V. Madushanka
Chief Financial Officer
The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these Financial Statements. Signed for and on behalf
of the Board.
(Sgd.)						

(Sgd.)

Mohan Pandithage
Director

M.H. Wijewardene
Director

Colombo
16 May 2019
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Revenue Reserve

Reserve

Balance as at 1 January 2017

Stated

Revaluation

General

Retained

Total

Capital

Reserve

Reserve

Earnings

Equity

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

38,463,000

890,076,732

61,484,250

397,744,645

1,387,768,627

-

-

-

68,409,520

68,409,520

Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
Remeasurement of defined benefit liability

-

-

-

(1,282,007)

(1,282,007)

Related tax

-

-

-

358,962

358,962

Deferred tax on revaluation of land

-

(232,425,037)

-

-

(232,425,037)

Total other comprehensive income

-

(232,425,037)

-

(923,045)

(233,348,082)

Total comprehensive income for the year

-

(232,425,037)

-

67,486,475

(164,938,562)

Dividend of Rs. 6.50 cents per share 2016

-

-

-

(25,000,950)

(25,000,950)

Total transaction with the owners of the Company

-

-

-

(25,000,950)

(25,000,950)

Realisation of revaluation surplus

-

(2,129,116)

-

2,129,116

-

Balance as at 31 December 2017

38,463,000

655,522,579

61,484,250

442,359,286

1,197,829,115

Balance as at 01 January 2018

38,463,000

655,522,579

61,484,250

442,359,286

1,197,829,115

Adjustment on building revaluation

-

-

-

68,650,000

68,650,000

Adjustment on deferred tax of building revaluation

-

-

-

(6,865,000)

(6,865,000)

38,463,000

655,522,579

61,484,250

504,144,286

1,259,614,115

-

-

-

21,029,337

21,029,337

Revaluation of land and building

-

175,974,496

-

-

175,974,496

Remeasurement of defined benefit liability

-

-

-

3,856,275

3,856,275

Related tax

-

-

-

(1,079,757)

(1,079,757)

Deferred tax on revaluation of land and buildings

-

(49,272,859)

-

-

(49,272,859)

Transaction with the owners of the Company
recognised directly in the equity

Adjusted Balance as at 01 January 2018
Total comprehensive income for the period
Profit for the period
Other comprehensive income

Total other comprehensive income

-

126,701,637

-

2,776,518

129,478,155

Total comprehensive income for the period

-

126,701,637

-

23,805,855

150,507,492

61,540,800

(71,559,070)

-

-

(10,018,270)

-

-

-

(51,155,789)

(51,155,789)

61,540,800

(71,559,070)

-

(51,155,789)

(61,174,059)

-

(3,522,136)

-

3,522,136

-

100,003,800

707,143,010

61,484,250

480,316,488

1,348,947,548

Transaction with the owners of the Company
recognised directly in the equity
Bonus share issue
Dividend of Rs. 13.30 cents per share 2017
Total transaction with the owners of the Company
Realisation of revaluation surplus
Balance as at 31 March 2019

The Accounting Policies and Notes on pages 45 through 85 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
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Note

For fifteen

For twelve

months ended

months ended

31.03.2019

31.12.2017

Rs.

Rs.

29,012,922

70,931,237

(3,410,030)

(8,006,262)

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before income tax expense
Adjustments for;

Corporate Governance

Share of profit of equity accounted investee
Depreciation on property , plant and equipment
Change in fair value of investment property

13
11.2

8,581,488

9,385,552

12

(26,350,000)

(50,000,000)

Financial Reports

Written off of property , plant and equipment

11.2

530,567

-

Finance income

7.1

(21,657,874)

(16,245,350)

Finance cost

7.2

7,999,174

129,372

Provision for bonus

27

8,339,526

7,616,825

Provision for warranty

27

5,158,391

7,940,336

Provision for retiring gratuity

25

9,167,921

7,278,259

1,343,834

3,484,720

Operating profit before working capital changes

18,715,919

32,514,689

(Increase)/decrease in inventories

(44,096,548)

25,355,048

Reversal of impairment on inventories

14.1

(Increase)/decrease in other receivables

(1,235,132)

1,244,739

Decrease in trade dues from related parties

16,326,838

14,540,276

(Increase)/decrease in pre- payments

(1,346,123)

363,131

Increase in trade and other payables

(11,415,133)

(24,398,921)

(Increase)/decrease in other dues to related parties
Cash generated from operations

(3,695,912)

1,183,652

(26,746,091)

50,802,614

Interest paid

7.2

(7,778,960)

(129,372)

Retiring gratuity paid

25

(3,098,588)

(1,561,167)

Bonus paid

27

(5,491,936)

(12,476,222)

Warranty paid

27

(2,501,980)

(8,598,927)

Income tax paid

19

Net cash flows from operating activities

(6,472,180)

(10,428,223)

(52,089,735)

17,608,703

(7,491,480)

(182,335)

Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment

11.1

Interest received

7.1

233,237

2,269,659

WHT paid on bonus share issue

(10,018,270)

-

Net cash flows used in investing activities

(17,276,513)

2,087,324

(50,462,255)

(24,677,553)

Cash flows from financing activities
Dividend paid
Proceeds from interest - bearing loans and borrowings

29

130,000,000

-

Repayment of interest - bearing loans and borrowings

29

(70,000,000)

-

Net cash flows from financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period

21

9,537,745

(24,677,553)

(59,828,503)

(4,981,526)

12,756,600

17,738,126

(47,071,903)

12,756,600

The Accounting Policies and Notes on pages 45 through 85 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1.1 Reporting Entity

The reporting period of Singer Industries
(Ceylon) PLC, has been changed from
31 December to 31 March with effect
from financial period 2018/19 in order
to align with the parents’ and ultimate
parents’ reporting period. Therefore, the
comparative year information comprises
a period of twelve months from 01
January 2017 to 31 December 2017. The
current year amounts comprise as at and
for the period of fifteen months ended
31 March 2019. Therefore, amounts
presented in the Financial Statements are
not entirely comparable. The disclosures
pertaining to change of the financial
reporting period has been made in
accordance with LKAS 1 on “Presentation
of Financial Statements”.

Singer Industries (Ceylon) PLC
(‘Company’) is a limited liability Company
incorporated and domiciled in Sri Lanka.
The registered office of the Company is
located at No. 2, 5th Lane, Ratmalana
and the principal place of business is
situated at the same place.
1.2 Principal Activities and Nature of
Operations
The Company is engaged in assembly
of sewing machines, manufacture of
cabinets and stands for sewing machines.
1.3 Parent Enterprise and Ultimate
Parent Enterprise
Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC is the parent
Company of Singer Industries (Ceylon)
PLC. On 15 September 2017, Hayleys
PLC with parties acting in concert
acquired 61.73% of Singer (Sri Lanka)
PLC. Accordingly, Hayleys PLC became
the ultimate parent Company of Singer
Industries (Ceylon) PLC with effect from
15 September 2017.
Subsequently, Hayleys PLC with parties
acting in concert issued a notice of
mandatory offer in line with terms of Rule
31(1) (a) of takeovers and mergers code
1995, to purchase 108,201,585 ordinary
shares carrying voting rights of Singer
(Sri Lanka) PLC at a price of Rs.47/- per
share (excluding 35,562,883 shares held
by Retail Holding (Sri Lanka) BV. After
exercising the mandatory offer, Hayleys
PLC together with its group companies
holds 80.96% (approx.) of Singer (Sri
Lanka) PLC.
On 15 October 2018, Hayleys PLC
purchased the balance 35,562,883
(9.47%) ordinary shares held by Retail
Holdings (Sri Lanka) BV in Singer (Sri
Lanka) PLC at a price of Rs.47/- per share
upon Retail Holdings (Sri Lanka) BV
exercising their option to sell its shares
to Hayleys PLC as previously agreed.
After accepting this offer, Hayleys PLC
together with its group Companies holds
90.43% (80.96% previously) of Singer (Sri
Lanka) PLC.

1.5 Number of Employees
The number of employees at the end of
the period was 76 (2017 – 83).
1.6 Responsibilities for Financial
Statements and approval of Financial
Statements
The Financial Statements of Singer
Industries (Ceylon) PLC, for the period
ended 31 March 2019, were approved
by the Board of Directors at the Board
meeting held on 16 May 2019.
The Board of Directors is responsible
for preparation and presentation of the
Financial Statements of the Company
as per the provision of the Company act
No 07 of 2007 and Sri Lanka accounting
standards. The Directors’ responsibility
over Financial Statements are set out
in detail in the statement of Directors’
responsibility.
2. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
2.1 Statement of Compliance
The Financial Statements have been
prepared in accordance with new Sri
Lanka Accounting Standards (SLAS),
prefixed both SLFRS (corresponding to
IFRS) and LKAS (corresponding to CA Sri
Lanka), promulgated by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka and
complies with the requirements of the
companies Act No. 07 of 2007.

2.2 Functional and Presentation
Currency
The Financial Statements are presented
in Sri Lankan Rupees, which is the
Company’s functional currency.
2.3 Basis of Measurement
The Financial Statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis,
except for the following material items in
the Statements of Financial Position.
•

Land and buildings are measured at
fair value.

•

Defined benefit plan which are
measured at the present value of
employee benefits.

•

Investment property measured at fair
value.

2.4 Use of Estimates and Judgments
In preparing these Financial Statements,
management has made judgements
and estimates that affect the application
of the Company’s accounting policies
and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to estimates are recognized
prospectively.
A. Judgements
Information about judgements made
in applying accounting policies that
have the most significant effects on the
amounts recognised in the Financial
Statements are included in the following
notes:
Note 13 - Equity-accounted investees:
whether the Company has significant
influence over an investee.
B. Assumptions and estimation
uncertainties
Information about assumptions and
estimation uncertainties at 31 March 2019
that have a significant risk of resulting
in a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the
next financial year is included in the
following notes:
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Note 24 - Measurement of defined
benefit obligations: key actuarial
assumptions;
Note 25 - Recognition of deferred tax
assets: availability of future taxable profit
against which deductible temporary
differences and tax losses carried forward
can be utilised;

Corporate Governance

Note 14 - Provision for inventories
Note 27 - Provisions
Note 31 - Contingencies
2.5 Measurement of Fair Values

Financial Reports

A number of the Company’s accounting
policies and disclosures require the
measurement of fair values, for both
financial and non-financial assets and
liabilities.
Company regularly reviews significant
unobservable inputs and valuation
adjustments. If third party information is
used to measure fair values, Company
assesses the evidence obtained
from the third parties to support the
conclusion that such valuations meet the
requirements of SLFRS, including the
level in the fair value hierarchy in which
such valuations should be classified.

If the inputs used to measure the fair
value of an asset or a liability fall into
different levels of the fair value hierarchy,
then the fair value measurement is
categorized in its entirety in the same
level of the fair value hierarchy as the
lowest level input that is significant to the
entire measurement.
The Company recognizes transfers
between levels of the fair value hierarchy
at the end of the reporting period during
which the change has occurred.
Further information about the
assumptions made in measuring fair
values is included in Note 11, Note 12
and Note 25.
2.6. Going Concern
The Directors have made an assessment
of the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern in the foreseeable future,
and they do not intend either to liquidate
or cease trading.
2.7. Comparative Information
The amounts presented in the Financial
Statements are not entirely comparable
due to changes of the reporting
period. Please refer Note 1.4 for further
clarifications.

Significant valuation issues are reported
to the Group’s Audit Committee.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

When measuring the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Company
uses observable market data as far as
possible. Fair values are categorized into
different levels in a fair value hierarchy
based on the inputs used in the valuation
techniques as follows.

The Company has applied SLFRS 15 and
SLFRS 9 from 01 January 2018. Based
on the assessments carried out by the
management there is no significant
impact due to adopt of the standards.

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.
Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices
included in Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly (i
.e. as prices) or indirectly (i .e .derived
from prices).
Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability
that are not based on observable market
data. (Unobservable inputs).

Except for the above, the accounting
policies set out below have been applied
consistently to all periods presented in
these Financial Statements.

Foreign exchange differences arising
on the settlement or reporting of the
Company’s monetary items at rates
different from those which were initially
recorded are dealt with in the profit or
loss.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities that
are denominated in foreign currencies
that are stated at historical cost at
the reporting date are translated to
functional currency at the foreign
exchange rate prevailing at the date of
initial transaction.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities that
are stated at fair value, denominated
in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency at the exchange
rate prevailing at the dates that the value
were determined. Foreign exchange
differences arising on translation are
recognized in the profit or loss.
3.2 Property, Plant and Equipment
(a) Recognition and Measurement
Items of property, plant and equipment
are measured at cost / valuation less
accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses.
If significant part of an item of property,
plant and equipment have different
useful lives, then they are accounted for
as separate items (major components) of
property, plant and equipment.
Any gain or loss on disposal of an item
of property, plant and equipment is
recognized in profit or loss.
Cost model
The Company applies the cost model to
property, plant and equipment except for
freehold land and buildings.

3.1 Foreign Currency

Revaluation Model

Foreign Currency Transactions

The Company applies the revaluation
model to the entire class of free hold
land and buildings. A revaluation is
carried out when there is a substantial
difference between the fair value and the
carrying amount of the property, and is
undertaken by professionally qualified
values. The Company revalues its land
and buildings once in every two years.

Transactions in foreign currency are
translated to Sri Lanka Rupees at the
foreign exchange rates at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated into the
functional currency at the exchange rate
at the reporting date.
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The relevant portion of the revaluation
reserve is transferred to retained
earnings as the asset is depreciated
with the balance being transferred on
ultimate disposal.
(b) Subsequent Costs
The cost of replacing part of an item
of property, plant and equipment is
recognized in the carrying amount of
the item if it is probable that the future
economic benefits embodied within
the part will flow to the Company and
its cost can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of the replaced part
is derecognized. The costs of day- today servicing of property, plant and
equipment are recognized in Statement
of Profit or Loss as incurred.
(c) Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated to write off
the cost of items of property, plant and
equipment less their estimated residual
values using the straight-line method
over their estimated useful lives, and is
generally recognized in profit or loss.
Land is not depreciated.
The estimated useful lives of property,
plant and equipment for current and
comparative periods are as follows:
Buildings

over 40 years

Machinery and
Equipment

over 12 years

Motor Vehicles

over 05 years

Computers and Other
Equipment

over 05 years

Furniture and Fixtures

over 10 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives
and residual values are reassessed
at the reporting date and adjusted if
appropriate.
3.3 Investment Property
Investment property is property held
either to earn rental income or for capital
appreciation or both, but not for sale in
the ordinary course of business, use in
the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes.
Investment property is initially measured
at cost and subsequently at fair value
with any change therein recognized in
Statement of Profit or Loss.
3.4 Interest in Equity Accounted
Investees
Associates are those entities in which
the Company has significant influence,
but not control or joint control over the
financial and operating policies.
Interests in associates are accounted
for using equity method. They are
recognized initially at cost, which include
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the Financial Statements
include the share of the profit or loss of
the equity accounted investees, until
the date on which significant influence
ceases.
3.5 Financial Instruments

to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.
A financial asset (unless it is a trade
receivable without a significant financing
component) or financial liability is initially
measured at fair value plus, for an item
not at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition or issue.
A trade receivable without a significant
financing component is initially measured
at the transaction price.
II. Classification and subsequent
measurement of financial assets
•

On initial recognition, a financial asset is
classified as measured at: amortised cost;
fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVOCI) - debt investment; fair
value through other comprehensive
income (FVOCI) - equity investment; or
fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).
Financial assets are not reclassified
subsequent to their initial recognition
unless the Company changes its business
model for managing financial assets, in
which case all affected financial assets
are reclassified on the first day of the first
reporting period following the change in
the business model.
A financial asset is measured at
amortised cost if it meets both of
the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:
--

It is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold assets to
collect contractual cash flows; and

--

Its contractual terms give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

3.5.1 Financial Assets
I.

Recognition and initial measurement

A financial instrument is any contract that
gives rise to a financial asset of one entity
and financial liability or equity instrument
of another entity.
Receivables and debt securities issued
are initially recognized when they are
originated. All other financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially recognized
when the Company becomes a party

Policy Applicable from 01 January
2018

Company financial assets classified
and measured at amortized cost are
limited to its other receivables, short
term investments and cash and cash
equivalent.
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Decreases in the carrying amount
on revaluation that offset previous
increases of the same individual assets
are charged against revaluation reserve
directly in equity. All other decreases are
recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss.

Depreciation of an asset begins when
it is available for use and ceases at the
earliest of the date that the asset as
classified as held for sale and the date
that the asset is derecognized.

Financial Reports

Increases in the carrying amount on
revaluation is recognized in other
comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity in the revaluation reserve
unless it reverses a previous revaluation
decrease relating to the same asset,
which was previously recognized as an
expense. In these circumstances the
increase is recognized as income to the
extent of the previous write down.
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contractual interest income,
maintaining a particular interest rate
profile, matching the duration of
the financial assets to the duration
of any related liabilities or expected
cash outflows or realising cash flows
through the sale of the assets;

A debt investment is measured at
FVOCI if it meets both of the following
conditions and is not designated as at
FVTPL:
--

Corporate Governance

--

It is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets; and
Its contractual terms give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial Reports

On initial recognition of an equity
investment that is not held for trading,
the Company may irrevocably elect
to present subsequent changes in the
investment’s fair value in OCI. This
election is made on an investment-byinvestment basis.

--

How the performance of the portfolio
is evaluated and reported to the
Company’s management;

--

The risks that affect the performance
of the business model (and the
financial assets held within that
business model) and how those risks
are managed;

--

How managers of the business
are compensated - e.g. whether
compensation is based on the fair
value of the assets managed or the
contractual cash flows collected; and

All financial assets not classified as
measured at amortised cost or FVOCI
as described above are measured
at FVTPL. This includes all derivative
financial assets. On initial recognition,
the Company may irrevocably designate
a financial asset that otherwise meets
the requirements to be measured at
amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL
if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces an accounting mismatch that
would otherwise arise.

--

Company’s investment in equity
investments are classified as FVTPL.

Financial assets that are held for trading
or are managed and whose performance
is evaluated on a fair value basis are
measured at FVTPL.

•

Financial assets - Business model
assessment

Policy Applicable from 01 January 2018
The Company makes an assessment
of the objective of the business model
in which a financial asset is held at a
portfolio level because this best reflects
the way the business is managed and
information is provided to management.
The information considered includes:
--

The stated policies and objectives
for the portfolio and the operation
of those policies in practice. These
include whether management’s
strategy focuses on earning

The frequency, volume and timing
of sales of financial assets in prior
periods, the reasons for such sales
and expectations about future sales
activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third
parties in transactions that do not qualify
for derecognition are not considered
sales for this purpose, consistent with the
Company’s continuing recognition of the
assets.

•

Financial assets -Assessment
whether contractual cash flows are
solely payments of principal and
interest.

Policy Applicable from 01 January 2018
For the purposes of this assessment,
‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of
the financial asset on initial recognition.
‘Interest’ is defined as consideration
for the time value of money and for the
credit risk associated with the principal
amount outstanding during a particular
period of time and for other basic
lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk
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and administrative costs), as well as a
profit margin.
In assessing whether the contractual cash
flows are solely payments of principal
and interest, the Company considers the
contractual terms of the instrument. This
includes assessing whether the financial
asset contains a contractual term that
could change the timing or amount of
contractual cash flows such that it would
not meet this condition. In making this
assessment, the Company considers:
--

Contingent events that would change
the amount or timing of cash flows;

--

Terms that may adjust the contractual
coupon rate, including variable-rate
features;

--

Prepayment and extension features;
and

--

Terms that limit the Company’s claim
to cash flows from specified assets
(e.g. non-recourse features).

A prepayment feature is consistent
with the solely payments of principal
and interest criterion if the prepayment
amount substantially represents unpaid
amounts of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding, which
may include reasonable additional
compensation for early termination of
the contract. Additionally, for a financial
asset acquired at a discount or premium
to its contractual paramount, a feature
that permits or requires prepayment at
an amount that substantially represents
the contractual par amount plus accrued
(but unpaid) contractual interest (which
may also include reasonable additional
compensation for early termination) is
treated as consistent with this criterion if
the fair value of the prepayment feature
is insignificant at initial recognition.

About Us
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These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net
gains and losses, including any interest or dividend income, are
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets at
amortised cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. The amortised cost
is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in
profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in
profit or loss.

Debt investments
at FVOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest
income calculated using the effective interest method, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in
profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI.
On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are
reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity
investments at
FVOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value.
Dividends are recognised as income in profit or loss unless the
dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI
and are never reclassified to profit or loss.

Classification, subsequent measurement
and gain and losses
Financial liabilities are classified as
measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A
financial liability is classified as at FVTPL
if it is classified as held – for – trading,
it is a derivative or it is designated as
such on initial recognition. Financial
liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair
value and gains and losses, including
any interest expense, are recognised in
profit or loss. Other financial liabilities
are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.
Interest expense and foreign exchange
gains and losses are recognised in profit
or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition
is also recognised in profit or loss .
(Ⅲ) Derecognition
Financial Assets

II. Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
Financial Assets
Policy Applicable Before 01 January 2018
The Company categorises financial instruments in to four categorises;
•

A financial asset or financial liability at fair value through profit or loss

•

Held-to-maturity investments

•

Available-for-sale financial assets

•

Loans and receivables

As at the previous year end and during the previous year Companies Financial assets
were only in the category of loans and receivables.
The Company initially recognizes loans and receivables on the date when they are
originated. All other financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognized on
the trade date when the entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.
Loans and receivables
These assets are initially measured at fair value plus any directly attributable
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method.
Non-derivative financial liabilities – Measurement
Other non-derivative financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value less any
directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these
liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The Company derecognizes a financial
asset when the contractual rights to
the cash flows from the asset expire,
or it transfers the rights to receive the
contractual cash flows in a transaction
in which substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial
asset are transferred, or it neither
transfers nor retains substantially all
of the risks and rewards of ownership
and does not retain control over the
transferred asset. Any interest in such
derecognized financial assets that is
created or retained by the Company is
recognized as a separate asset or liability.
Financial Liabilites
The Company derecognizes a financial
liability when its contractual obligations
are discharged or cancelled or expired
(Ⅳ) Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities
are offset and the net amount presented
in the Statement of Financial Position
when, and only when, the Company
currently has a legally enforceable
right to offset the amounts and intends
either to settle them on a net basis or to
realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.
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Financial assets at
FVTPL
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(b) Financial liabilities

Financial assets - Subsequent measurement and gains and losses
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•
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3.6 Impairment of Assets
Management Reports

Policy Applicable from 01 January 2018

•

The Company recognises loss allowances
for ECLs on:

Corporate Governance

•

Financial assets measured at
amortised cost;

•

Debt investments measured at
FVOCI; and

•

Contract assets.

The Company measures loss allowances
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
except for the following, which are
measured at 12-month ECLs:

Financial Reports

•

•

Debt securities that are determined
to have low credit risk at the
reporting date; and
Other debt securities and bank
balances for which credit risk (i.e.
the risk of default occurring over
the expected life of the financial
instrument) has not increased
significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowances for trade receivables is
always measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs.
When determining whether the credit
risk of a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition and
when estimating ECLs, the Company
considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort. This
includes both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis, based on
the Company’s historical experience
and informed credit assessment and
including forward-looking information.
The Company assumes that the credit
risk on a financial asset has increased
significantly if it is more than 12 months
past due.
The Company considers a financial asset
to be in default when:
•

The borrower is unlikely to pay its
credit obligations to the Company
in full, without recourse by the

that the Company would not
consider otherwise;

Company to actions such as realising
security (if any is held); or
The financial asset is more than 12
months past due.

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result
from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument.
12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs
that result from default events that are
possible within the 12 months after the
reporting date (or a shorter period if the
expected life of the instrument is less
than 12 months).
The maximum period considered
when estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the
Company is exposed to credit risk.
•

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted
estimate of credit losses. Credit losses
are measured as the present value of
all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference
between the cash flows due to the entity
in accordance with the contract and the
cash flows that the Company expects to
receive).
ECLs are discounted at the effective
interest rate of the financial asset.
•

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company
assesses whether financial assets carried
at amortised cost and debt securities at
FVOCI are credit-impaired. A financial
asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or
more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes the following
observable data:
•

Significant financial difficulty of the
borrower or issuer;

•

A breach of contract such as a default
or being more than 12 months past
due;

•

The restructuring of a loan or
advance by the Company on terms
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•

It is probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

•

The disappearance of an active
market for a security because of
financial difficulties.

•

Presentation of allowance for ECL in
the Statement of Financial Position

Loss allowances for financial assets
measured at amortised cost are
deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets.
For debt securities at FVOCI, the loss
allowance is charged to profit or loss and
is recognised in OCI.
•

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial
asset is written off when the Company
has no reasonable expectations of
recovering a financial asset in its entirety
or a portion thereof. For individual
customers, the Company has a policy
of writing off the gross carrying amount
when there are no realistic prospect
of recovering of the assets based on
historical experience of recoveries of
similar assets. For corporate customers,
the Company individually makes
an assessment with respect to the
timing and amount of write-off based
on whether there is a reasonable
expectation of recovery. The Company
expects no significant recovery from the
amount written off. However, financial
assets that are written off could still
be subject to enforcement activities in
order to comply with the Company’s
procedures to recovery of amounts due.
Policy Applicable Before 01 January
2018
3.6.1 Non- Derivative Financial Assets
Financial assets not classified as at fair
value through profit or loss, including an
interest in an equity- accounted investee,
are assessed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment.

Default or delinquency by a debtor;

•

Indications that a debtor or issuer will
enter bankruptcy;

•

Adverse changes in the payment
status of borrowers or issuers;

•

Observable data indicating that
there is a measurable decrease in the
expected cash flows from a group of
financial assets.

(a) Impairment Losses on Financial
Assets Carried at Amortized Cost
The Company considers evidence
of impairment for these assets at an
individual asset level. All individually
significant assets are individually
assessed for impairment.
An impairment loss is calculated as the
difference between an asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at
the asset’s original effective interest rate.
Losses are recognized in profit or loss
and reflected in an allowance account.
When the Company considers that there
are no realistic prospects of recovery
of the asset, the relevant amounts are
written off. If the amount of impairment
loss subsequently decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment
was recognized, then the previously
recognized impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss.
(b) Equity-accounted investees
An impairment loss in respect of an
equity- accounted investee is measured
by comparing the recoverable amount of
the investment with its carrying amount.
An impairment loss is recognized in profit
or loss, and is reversed if there has been
a favorable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount.

3.7 Stated Capital

The carrying amount of the Company’s
non - financial assets, other than
inventories and deferred tax assets,
are reviewed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication
of impairment. If any such indication
exists, then the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. For intangible
assets that have indefinite useful lives
or that are not yet available for use the
recoverable amount is estimated each
year at the same time.

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable
to the issue of ordinary shares are
recognized as a deduction from equity
net of any tax effects.

The recoverable amount of an asset
or cash-generating unit is the greater
of its value in use and its fair value less
cost to sell. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.
For the purpose of impairment testing
assets that cannot be tested individually
are grouped together into the smallest
group of assets that generates cash
inflow from continuing use that are
largely independent of the cash inflows
of other assets or groups of assets (the
cash generating unit or ‘CGU’)
An impairment loss is recognized if the
carrying amount of an asset or cashgenerating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses are
recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss.
In respect of other assets impairment
losses recognized in prior periods are
assessed at each reporting date for any
indications that the loss has decreased
or no longer exists. An impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss
is reversed only to the extent that the
asset’s carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have
been determined net of depreciation or
amortization if no impairment loss had
been recognized.

3.8 Provisions
A provision is recognized if, as a result of
a past event, the Company has a present
legal or constructive obligation that can
be estimated reliably, and it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation.
Provisions are determined by discounting
the expected future cash flows at a
pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessment of the time value of money
and the risk specific to the liability. The
unwinding of the discount is recognized
as finance cost.
Provisions are determined by discounting
the expected future cash flows at a
pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the liability. The
unwinding of the discount is recognized
as finance cost.
Warranties
A provision for warranties is recognized
when the underlying products or services
are sold, based on historical warranty
data and a weighting of possible
outcomes against their associated
probabilities.
3.9 Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower
of cost and net realizable value, after
making due allowances for obsolete
and slow moving items. Net realizable
value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less
the estimated costs of completion and
selling expenses.
The cost of each category of inventory is
determined on the following basis:
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3.6.2 Non-Financial Assets
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Raw Materials

At actual cost on first-in first-out basis

Finished Goods &
Work-in-Progress

At the cost of direct materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of fixed production overheads based
on normal operating capacity.

Goods-in-Transit

At actual cost

Inventory Provision

Specific provisions are made giving consideration to the
condition of inventory held by the Company

Corporate Governance

3.10 Employee Benefits
(a) Defined Benefit Plans
The Company net obligation in respect of defined benefit plan is calculated by
estimating the amount of future benefits that employees have earned in current and
prior periods discounting that amount.

Financial Reports

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified
actuary using the projected unit credit method. Re-measurement of the net defined
benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses are recognized immediately
in Other Comprehensive Income. The Company determines the net interest expense
on the net defined benefit liability for the period by applying the discount rate used to
measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the
net defined liability, taking in to account any changes in the net defined benefit liability
during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest
expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognized in profit
or loss.
The liability is not externally funded.
(b) Defined Contribution Plans - Employees’ Provident Fund and Employees’ Trust
Fund
A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity
pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive
obligation to pay further amounts.
Employees are eligible for Employees’ Provident Fund Contributions, Mercantile
Service Provident Society Contribution and Employees’ Trust Fund Contributions are
in line with respective Statutes and Regulations. The Company contributes 12% of
the gross emoluments of employees to Employees’ Provident Fund and Mercantile
Service Provident Society Contribution. And the Company contributes 3% of gross
emoluments of employees to Employees’ Trust Fund. The above contributions are
recognized as expenses in Statement of Comprehensive Income in the periods during
which services are rendered by employees.
(c) Short-Term Benefits
Short-term employee benefits and obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis
and are expensed as the related services are provided.
3.11 Revenue Recognition
The Company has initially applied IFRS 15- “Revenue from contracts with customers”
from 1 January 2018.
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Performance obligations and revenue
recognition policies
SLFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive
framework for determining whether, how
much and when revenue is recognized.
As per the standard, revenue is measured
based on the consideration specified in a
contact with a customer.
Revenue is recognized when the
goods are delivered to customer as the
performance obligation will be satisfied
on delivery.
Disaggregation of revenue
SLFRS 15 requires an entity to
disaggregate revenue from contracts
with customers into categories that
depict how the nature, amount, timing
and uncertainty of revenue and cash
flows are affected by economic factors.
The Company’s contracts with customers
are similar in nature and revenue from
these contracts are not significantly
affected by economic factors apart from
exports sales. The Company believes
objective of this requirement will be met
by using one type of category – Product
type. (Refer Note 05.B)

b) Finance cost comprises interest
expenses on borrowings.
c) Borrowings cost that are not directly
attributable to the acquisition
construction or production of
qualifying assets is recognized in
profit or loss using the effective
interest method.
d) Foreign currency gains and losses are
reported on a net basis.
3.11.3 Dividend Income
Dividend income is recognized in
Statement of Profit or Loss on the date
the entity’s right to receive payment is
established.
3.11.4 Rental Income
Rental income from investment property
is recognized as revenue on a straightline basis over the term of the lease.
3.11.5 Others
Gains and losses of a revenue nature
on the disposal of property plant and
equipment and other noncurrent assets
including investment are recognized
by comparing the net sale proceeds
with the carrying amount of the
corresponding assets and are recognized
net within other income in Statement of
Profit or Loss.
3.12 Expenditure Recognition
Expenses are recognized in profit or
loss on the basis of direct association
between the costs incurred and
earning of specific items of income.
All expenditure incurred in the running
of the business and in maintaining the
Property, Plant and Equipment in a
state of efficiency has been charged to
income in arriving at the profit for the
year. For the purpose of presentation of
Statement of Comprehensive Income the
Directors are of the opinion that function

3.13 Income Tax
Income tax expense comprises current
and deferred tax. Income tax expense is
recognized in profit or loss except to the
extent that it relates to items recognized
directly in equity or other comprehensive
income, in which case it is recognized
either in equity or other comprehensive
income respectively.
(a) Current Tax
Current tax is the expected tax payable
on the taxable income for the period
using tax rates enacted at the reporting
date and any adjustments to tax payable
in respect of prior period. The amount
of current tax payable or receivable is
the best estimate of the tax amount
expected to be paid or received that
reflects uncertainty related to income
taxes, if any. It is measured using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at
the reporting date.
Current tax assets and liabilities are
offset only if certain criteria are met.
(b) Deferred Income Tax
Deferred tax is recognized in respect
of temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and the
amounts used for taxation purposes.
Deferred tax assets are recognized for
unused tax losses, unused tax credits
and deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available
against which they can be used. Future
taxable profits are determined based on
business plans of the Company. Deferred
tax assets are reviewed at each reporting
date and are reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that the related tax
benefit will be realised; such reductions
are reversed when the probability of
future taxable profits improves.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax
rates that are expected to be applied to
temporary differences when they reverse,
using tax rates enacted or subsequently
enacted at the reporting date.
The measurement of deferred tax reflects
the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Company
expects, at the reporting date, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities. For this purpose
the carrying amount of investment
property measured at fair value is
presumed to be recovered through sale
and the Company has not rebutted this
presumption.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
offset only if certain criteria are met.
3.14 Earnings Per Share (EPS)
The Company presents basic EPS for its
ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated
by dividing the profit or loss attributable
to ordinary shareholders of the Company
by the weighted average no. of ordinary
shares outstanding during the year.
4. Changes in Accounting Policy
The Company has applied SLFRS 15 and
SLFRS 9 from 01 January 2018. Based
on the assessments carried out by the
management there is no significant
impact due to adopt of the standards.
Due to the transition methods chosen
by the Company in applying these
standards, comparative information
throughout these Financials Statements
has not been restated to reflect the
requirements of the new standards.
A. SLFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers
SLFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive
framework for determining whether, how
much and when revenue is recognized.
It replaced LKAS 18 Revenue, LKAS
11 Construction contracts and related
interpretations. Under SLFRS 15,
revenue is recognized when a customer
obtains control of the goods or services.
Determining the timing of the transfer
control-at a point in time or over timerequires judgment.
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a) Finance income comprises interest
income of funds invested. Interest
income is recognized as it accrues
in profit or loss using the effective
interest method.

of expenses method presents fairly the
elements of the Company’s performance,
and hence such presentation method is
adopted.

Financial Reports

3.11.2 Finance Income and Finance cost

Management Reports
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The Company has adopted SLFRS 15
using the cumulative effect method
(without practical expedients), with
the effect of initially applying this
standard recognized at the date of
initial application (01 January 2018).
Accordingly, the information presented
for 2017 has not been restated – it is
presented, as previously reported, under
LKAS 18, and related interpretations,
additionally, the disclosures requirements
in SLFRS 15 have not generally been
applied to comparative information.

Financial Reports

There was no impact on the comparative
figures presented in the Statement of
Financial Position, Statement of Changes
in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows.
Further, the change in accounting policy
has no impact on the reported amount
in accumulated profits as at 01 January
2018.
B. SLFRS 9 Financial Instruments
SLFRS 9 set out requirements for
recognized and measuring financial
assets, financial liabilities and some
contracts to buy or sell non-financial
items. This standard replaces LKAS
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement. Additionally, the
Company has adopted consequential
amendments to SLFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures that are applied
to disclosures about 2019 but have not
been generally applied to comparative
information.
As a result of the adoption of SLFRS 9,
the Company has adopted consequential
amendments to LKAS 1 Presentation
of Financial Instruments, which require
impairment of financial assets to be
presented in separate line item in the
Statement of Profit or Loss and OCI.
SLFRS 9 contains three principal
classification categories for financial
assets: measured at amortized cost,
FVOCI and FVTPL. The classification
of financial assets under SLFRS 9 is
generally based on the business model
in which a financial asset is managed and
its contractual cash flow characteristics.
SLFRS 9 eliminates the previous LKAS
39 categories of held to maturity,
loans and receivables and available
for sale. SLFRS 9 largely retains the
existing requirements in LKAS 39 for
the classification and measurement of
financial liabilities.

The Company has used an exemption not to restate comparative information for
prior periods with respect to classification and measurement (including impairment)
requirements. Differences in the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities resulting from the adoption of SLFRS 9 are recognized in retained earnings
and reserves as at 01 January 2018. Accordingly, the information presented for 2017
does not generally reflect the requirements of SLFRS 9, but rather those of LKAS 39.
The following assessments have been made on the basis of the facts and
circumstances that existed at the date of initial application.
•

The determination of the business model within which a financial asset is held.

•

The designation and revocation of previous designations of certain financial assets
and financial liabilities as measured at FVTPL.

•

The designation of certain investments in equity instruments not held for trading
as at FVOCI.

•

If an investment in a debt security had low credit risk at the date of initial
application of SLFRS 9, then the Company has assumed that the credit risk on the
asset had not increased significantly since it’s initial recognition.

The following table and the accompanying notes below explain the original
measurement categories under LKAS 39 and the new measurement categories under
SLFRS 9 for each class of the Company’s financial assets as at 01 January 2018. The
effect of adopting SLFRS 9 on the carrying amounts of financial assets at 01 January
2018 relates solely to the new impairment requirements.

Original
classification
under
LKAS 39

New
classification
under
SLFRS 9

Original
carrying
amount
under
LKAS 39

New
carrying
amount
under
SLFRS 9

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents Loans &
Receivables

Amortized Cost

Related party receivable

Loans &
Receivables

Amortized Cost 101,031,218 101,031,218

Other receivables

Loans &
Receivables

Amortized Cost

Investments in fixed
deposits

Loans &
Receivables

Amortized Cost 122,904,845 122,904,845

Total financial assets

17,933,576 17,933,576

2,773,496

2,773,496

244,643,135 244,643,135

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables Other Financial Other Financial
Liabilities
Liabilities

59,259,030 59,259,030

Amounts due to related
Company

Other Financial Other Financial
Liabilities
Liabilities

5,552,346

5,552,346

Bank overdraft

Other Financial Other Financial
Liabilities
Liabilities

5,176,976

5,176,976

Dividend payable

Other Financial Other Financial
Liabilities
Liabilities

1,168,352

1,168,352

Total financial liabilities
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effective
(A) SLFRS 16 Leases
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SLFRS 16 sets out the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation
and disclosure of leases and requires
lessees to account for all leases under a
single on-balance sheet model similar to
the accounting for finance leases under
LKAS – 17. The objective is to ensure
that lessees and lessors provide relevant
information in a manner that faithfully
represents those transactions. The
information gives a basis for the users of
Financial Statements to assess the effect
that leases have on the financial position.

Financial Reports

SLFRS 16 is effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019, with early adoption permitted.
The Company is assessing the potential
impact on its Financial Statements
resulting from the application of SLFRS
16.
(B) Other standards
The following amended standards and
the interpretations are not expected
to have a significant impact on the
Company Financial Statements.
Effective Date -1 January 2019
•

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Tax
Treatments.

•

Prepayment features with negative
compensation (Amendments to
SLFRS 9).

•

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
settlement (Amendment to LKAS 19).

•

Annual Improvements to SLFRS
Standards 2015-2017 Cycle- various
standards.

•

Annual Improvements to SLFRS
3-Business combinations, SLFRS 11 –
Joint Arrangements, LKAS12 Income
Taxes.
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5.REVENUE
Management Reports

See Accounting Policies in Note 3.11
The effect of initially applying SLFRS 15 on the Company’s revenue from contracts with customers is described in Note 4.
Revenue is recognized when the goods are delivered to customer as the performance obligation will be satisfied on delivery.
A. Revenue Streams

Corporate Governance

The Company generates revenue primarily from the sale of sewing machines,cabinets and stands to its parent Company.

Financial Reports

Sale of goods (net of taxes)

For fifteen

For twelve

months ended

months ended

31.03.2019

31.12.2017

Rs.

Rs.

786,935,376

646,578,610

786,935,376

646,578,610

The Company is engaged in assembly of sewing machines and manufacture of cabinets and stands all of which are sold to Singer
(Sri Lanka) PLC, furthermore the Company is manufacturing washing machine components to Regnis Appliance (Pvt) Ltd and
refrigerator components to Regnis (Lanka) PLC.
B. Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
In the following table, revenue from contracts with customers are disaggregated by major products.
Major products
For fifteen

For twelve

months ended

months ended

31.03.2019

31.12.2017

Rs.

Rs.

1. Sewing machines

622,679,093

577,247,738

2. Washing machines tubs

146,133,075

66,823,650

18,123,208

2,507,222

786,935,376

646,578,610

For fifteen

For twelve

months ended

w ended

31.03.2019

31.12.2017

Rs.

Rs.

84,704,380

101,031,218

3. Other component assembling

C. Contract balances
The following table provides information about receivables from contracts with customers.

Receivables, which are included in ‘amount due from related parties’ - from Singer (Sri
Lanka) PLC, Regnis (Lanka) PLC and Regnis Appliance (Pvt) Ltd.
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5.1 Operating Segments
5.1.1 Segmental Information
The Company has two reportable segments, as described below. These two different segments are managed separately because
they require different marketing strategies

Operations

Sewing Machines

*Assembly of sewing machines and manufacture of cabinets and stands

Components

*Manufacture of washing machine components, Air Conditioner brackets and refrigerator components

5.1.2 Information about Reportable Segments
Information regarding the results of each reporting segments are included below. Performance is measured based on segment
profit before tax. Segment profit is used to measure performance as management believes that such information is the most
relevant in evaluating the results.
Sewing Machines

Components Assembly
Total

Total

31. 03. 2019

31.12. 2017

31. 03. 2019

31.12. 2017

31. 03. 2019

31.12. 2017

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

622,679,093

577,247,738

164,256,283

69,330,872

786,935,376

646,578,610

9,451,091

41,789,795

2,493,100

5,019,202

11,944,191

46,808,997

Net finance income/(cost)

10,807,733

14,387,905

2,850,968

1,728,073

13,658,701

16,115,978

Reportable segment profit
before tax

22,957,082

56,177,700

6,055,840

6,747,275

29,012,922

62,924,975

For the period ended

Reportable segment revenue
Reportable segment results from
operating activities

-

-

-

Other segment assets

704,799,064

582,305,849

46,727,589

19,179,487

Reportable segment assets

704,799,064

582,305,849

46,727,589

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Property, plant and equipment

Cash and cash equivalents

- 1,121,724,420

947,370,499

751,526,655

601,485,336

19,179,487 1,873,251,075

1,548,855,835

2,316,053

17,933,576

- 1,875,567,128

1,566,789,410

-

-

Reportable segment liabilities
Bank overdraft

-

Loans and borrowings

-

-

-

-

49,387,957

5,176,976

-

-

60,000,000

-

-

-

-

-

109,387,957

5,176,976

Capital expenditure

7,491,480

182,335

-

-

7,491,480

182,335

Depreciation and amortization

8,581,488

9,385,552

-

-

8,581,488

9,385,552
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The following summary describes the operations in each reportable segments
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For fifteen

For twelve

months ended

months ended

31.03.2019

31.12.2017

Rs.

Rs.

23,003,100

10,322,659

1,618,792

478,864

24,621,892

10,801,523

For fifteen

For twelve

months ended

months ended

31.03.2019

31.12.2017

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

20,310,466

13,975,691

1,164,065

2,101,068

183,344

168,591

21,657,875

16,245,350

Interest expense on bank overdraft

(1,800,733)

(116,321)

Interest expense on loans and borrowings

(6,198,441)

(13,051)

(7,999,174)

(129,372)

13,658,701

16,115,978

6. OTHER INCOME
Rental income - from Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC
Other related parties

7. NET FINANCE INCOME
7.1 Finance income
Interest income - related companies
Interest income - others
Unwinding of interest income on interest-free employee loan

7.2 Finance cost

Net finance income
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months ended

months ended

31.03.2019

31.12.2017

Rs.

Rs.

Non-executive Directors’ fees

3,041,000

1,564,458

Directors’ emoluments

1,255,575

1,520,453

Auditor’s remuneration

600,000

575,000

Fee related to other audit services

200,000

250,000

8. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
Stated after charging all expenses including the following :

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

8,581,488

9,385,552

Originating of impairment of inventories

1,343,834

3,484,720

126,528,215

109,349,933

750,006

412,200

30,000

30,000

99,041,233

78,686,539

Bonus

8,674,236

16,253,392

Defined benefit plan costs - retiring gratuity

9,167,921

7,278,259

Defined contribution plan costs - EPF, ETF & MSPS

9,644,825

7,131,743

126,528,215

109,349,933

For fifteen

For twelve

months ended

months ended

31.03.2019

31.12.2017

Rs.

Rs.

5,272,660

4,564,722

-

1,222,214

5,272,660

5,786,936

2,710,925

(3,265,219)

2,710,925

(3,265,219)

7,983,585

2,521,717

Personnel costs (8.1)
Legal and professional fees
Donations
8.1 Personnel Cost
Salaries, wages and other related cost

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
Current tax expense
Current period
Under provision in respect of previous year

Deferred tax expense
Origination/ (reversal) of temporary differences
Income tax expense in Statement of Profit or Loss
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For fifteen

For twelve

months ended

months ended

31.03.2019

31.12.2017

Rs.

Rs.

Profit before tax

29,012,922

70,931,237

Tax exempted profit (Note 9.1.1)

(18,473,850)

-

Adjusted profit before tax

10,539,072

70,931,237

Share of Profit of equity accounted investee

(2,321,981)

(8,006,262)

Change in fair value of investment property

-

(50,000,000)

9.1 Reconciliation between accounting profit and taxable profit

Financial Reports

Non-business income - interest income

(17,058,722)

(16,076,759)

Aggregate disallowed items

38,625,677

37,060,259

Aggregate allowable expenses

(12,176,982)

(24,904,345)

Taxable income from business activities

17,607,064

9,004,129

Taxable income from business activities

17,607,064

9,004,129

Non-business income - interest income

17,058,722

16,076,759

Tax loss utilised during the period

(15,834,857)

(8,778,311)

Taxable income

18,830,929

16,302,577

28%

28%

5,272,660

4,564,722

5,272,660

4,564,722

Statutory tax rate %
Taxation on current profit

9.1.1 The reporting period of Singer Industries (Ceylon) PLC has changed from 31 December to 31 March in order to align with the
parent and ultimate parent Company’s reporting period with the approval of Registrar of the Company.
At the same time Company has requested from the Commissioner General of Inland Revenue to change the income tax assessment
period to be in line with the financial reporting period.
Subject to the approval of the Commissioner General of Inland Revenue under the new Inland Revenue Act, No 24 of 2017,
Company computed its provisional income tax for the purpose of accounting on the basis provided below.

Year of Assessment

Basis of Statutory Income Calculation

2016/17

On the basis of profit for the period from 01.01.2016 to 31.12.2016

2017/18

On the basis of profit for the period from 01.01.2017 to 31.12.2017

2018/19

On the basis of profit for the period from 01.01.2017 to 31.12.2018 or 01.04.2018 to 31.03.2018 whichever is
higher. Accordingly profit for the period from 01.01.2018 to 31.12.2018 was taken as the tax basis.
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months ended

months ended

31.03.2019

31.12.2017

Rs.

Rs.

15,834,857

24,825,242

-

(83,290)

(15,834,857)

(8,778,311)

-

15,963,641

9.2 Accumulated tax losses
Tax losses brought forward
Adjustment with respect of tax losses brought forward
Tax loss utilised during the period
Tax loss carried forward

For fifteen months ended

For twelve months ended

31.03.2019

31.12.2017

Before tax

Tax expense

Net of tax

Before tax

Tax expense

Net of tax

3,856,275

(1,079,757)

2,776,518

(1,282,007)

358,962

(923,045)

121,670,000

(34,067,600)

87,602,400

-

54,304,496

(15,205,259)

39,099,237

-

9.3 Tax recognised in other
comprehensive income
Defined benefits plan actuarial gain/
(loss)
Revaluation relating to land
Revaluation relating to building

179,830,771

(50,352,616) 129,478,155

(232,425,037) (232,425,037)
-

-

(1,282,007) (232,066,075) (233,348,082)

9.4 Applicable Tax Rates
For the period ended 31 March 2019, Singer Industries (Ceylon) PLC is liable to income tax at 28% (2017-28%) in terms of Inland
Revenue Act No 10 of 2006 and amendments thereto till 31 March 2018 and commencing from 01 April 2018 the Company is liable
for income tax under the IRD Act no 24 of 2017.
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10. EARNINGS PER SHARE
Management Reports

Earnings per Share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.
The following reflects the income and share data used in the earnings per share computations.

Corporate Governance

For fifteen

For twelve

months ended

months ended

31.03.2019

31.12.2017

Rs.

Rs.

Profit for the period (Rs.)

21,029,337

68,409,520

Weighted average number of ordinary shares - (Refer note 22.1.1)

10,000,380

10,000,380

2.10

6.84

Earnings per share

Earnings per share (Rs.)
Financial Reports

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
11.1 Gross Carrying Amounts
At Cost
Machinery

Balance as at 1 January 2017
Additions /(Transfers)
Disposals

At Valuation

Computers

Furniture

Buildings

and

Motor

and Other

and

Freehold

on Freehold

Equipment

Vehicles

Equipment

Fixtures

Land

Land

Total

67,668,560

8,358,890

13,011,664

6,444,159

830,430,000

121,842,313

1,047,755,586

-

-

148,460

33,875

-

-

182,335

(513,177)

-

-

-

-

-

(513,177)

Balance as at 31 December 2017

67,155,383

8,358,890

13,160,124

6,478,034

830,430,000

121,842,313

1,047,424,744

Balance as at 1 January 2018

67,155,383

8,358,890

13,160,124

6,478,034

830,430,000 121,842,313

1,047,424,744

6,821,878

-

669,215

387

-

-

7,491,480

Depreciation adjustment on
revaluation

-

-

-

-

-

(13,246,809)

(13,246,809)

Surplus on revaluation

-

-

-

-

121,670,000

54,304,496

175,974,496

Written off during the period

(4,466,342)

-

(6,817,777)

(1,006,923)

-

-

(12,291,042)

Balance as at 31 March 2019

69,510,919

8,358,890

7,011,562

5,471,498

952,100,000

162,900,000

1,205,352,869

Additions /(Transfers)
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Furniture

Buildings

and

Motor

and Other

and

Freehold

on Freehold

Equipment

Vehicles

Equipment

Fixtures

Land

Land

Total

64,001,102

6,828,889

11,781,025

6,326,751

-

2,244,103

91,181,870

3,128,556

765,001

510,034

54,517

-

4,927,444

9,385,552

(513,177)

-

-

-

-

-

(513,177)

Balance as at 31 December 2017

66,616,481

7,593,890

12,291,059

6,381,268

-

7,171,547

100,054,245

Balance as at 1 January 2018

66,616,481

7,593,890

12,291,059

6,381,268

-

7,171,547

100,054,245

1,156,556

765,000

548,165

36,505

-

6,075,262

8,581,488

-

-

-

-

-

(13,246,809)

(13,246,809)

Reversed on disposal

(3,935,775)

-

(6,817,777)

(1,006,923)

-

-

(11,760,475)

Balance as at 31 March 2019

63,837,262

8,358,890

6,021,447

5,410,850

-

-

83,628,449

5,673,657

-

990,115

60,648

952,100,000

162,900,000

1,121,724,420

538,902

765,000

869,065

96,766

830,430,000

114,670,766

947,370,499

Balance as at 1 January 2017
Charge for the year
Reversed on disposal

Charge for the period
Adjustment on revaluation

Carrying Amount
As at 31 March 2019
As at 31 December 2017

11.3 Information on the freehold Land and building of the Company.

Location

Valuation of
Land

Valuation of
Building

Extent
(Perches)

Floor Area
(Sq.ft.)

Number of
Buildings

Accommodation

No 2, 5th Lane, Ratmalana

952,100,000

162,900,000

362.3

75,365

10

Factory

Land carried at revalued amount
Carrying amount
Value per perch

as at 31

(Rs.)

March 2019

Location

Last revalued date

Extent

Zone 2

30 March 2019

135P

3,000,000

405,000,000

Zone 3

30 March 2019

185P

2,500,000

462,500,000

Zone 4

30 March 2019

42.3P

2,000,000

84,600,000
952,100,000
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11.4 The carrying amount of revalued assets that would have been included in the Financial Statements had the assets been carried
at cost less depreciation is as follows:

Class of asset

Corporate Governance

Land
Buildings

Depreciation

Net carrying

Net carrying

if assets were

amount

amount

Cost

carried at cost

2019

2017

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

340,583

-

340,583

340,583

47,544,272

25,167,068

22,377,204

23,862,961

47,884,855

25,167,068

22,717,787

24,203,544

11.5 During the financial period, the Company acquired property, plant and equipment to the aggregate value of Rs. 7,491,480 / (2017 - Rs. 182,335/ -) Cash payment amounting to Rs. 7,491,480 / - (2017 - Rs. 182,335/ -) was made during the period for purchase
of property, plant and equipment.

Financial Reports

11.6 Land and building at fair value
(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount
Company
31.03.2019

31.12.2017

Rs.

Rs.

Balance at the beginning

945,100,775

950,028,219

Adjustment on revaluation

175,974,496

-

Depreciation charge
Balance as at

-

(4,927,444)

1,121,075,271

945,100,775

(b) Measurement of Fair Value
Fair Value Hierarchy
The freehold land and building were valued on 30 March 2019 by Messrs. Chulananda Wellappili is an independent valuer who is
holding a degrees of B.Sc Estate Management and Valuation, M.Sc Town and Country Planning and PG.Dip in Regional Planning.
Further, he is Graduate Member of Valuers Sri Lanka, A Member of Institute of Town and Country Planning Sri Lanka, Senior
Certified Valuer of International Real Estate Institute of USA, A Corporate Member of Institute of Revenues, Rating and Valuation of
UK.
(c) Valuation Techniques and Significant Unobservable Inputs
The fair value measurement for freehold land and building of Rs.1,115 million has been categorised as a Level 3 fair values based on
the inputs to the valuation obtained for the purpose of revaluing the related land and buildings.
The following table shown the valuation techniques used in measuring the fair value of freehold land and building, as well as the
significant unobservable inputs used.
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Significant unobservable inputs

Interrelationship between

Land value is based on the market price
of the respective land

Market value of land (price per perch).
Valuer has used a range of prices for
respective lands based on their recently
transacted cost.

Market value per perch would increase/
(decrease) if- market value per perch was
higher/lower.

Contractor’s method: The contractor’s
method works on the basis that a
property’s value can be equated to
its cost. Valuer assess the cost of the
building of it would have constructed in
current period, and deduct margin for
usage of the property based on their
period of construction.

Construction cost per square feet of a
building. Depreciation rate for the usage
of assets.

Cost per square feet would increase/
(decrease) or/and depreciation rate for
usage lower/(higher)

12. INVESTMENT PROPERTY
See Accounting Policies in Note 3.3.
A. Reconciliation of carrying amount

Balance at the beginning of the period
Adjustment on Building Valuation (Note 12.1)
Adjusted balance at the beginning of the period
Change in fair value during the period
Balance at the end of the period

31.03.2019

31.12.2017

Rs.

Rs.

200,000,000

150,000,000

68,650,000

-

268,650,000

150,000,000

26,350,000

50,000,000

295,000,000

200,000,000

Investment property comprises a property at No 435, Galle Road, Ratmalana to the extent of 50.4 perches, that is leased to Singer
(Sri Lanka) PLC at an arms length price decided by the management. Subsequent renewals are negotiated with the lessee and
historically the average renewal period is 06 years. No contingent rents are charged.
There are no identified operational expenses with respect to the investment property.

12.1 Adjustment on building valuation
Company has not revalued its building to reflect its value in its Financial Statements over the years. The building is brought in to
Financial Statements by obtaining a value through an independent professionally qualified valuer (details of the valuer given in
note 12.B - Measurement of Fair Value to these Financial Statements). Accordingly building was valued at Rs. 68 million and was
incorporated as part of Buildings under Investment Property through retained earnings. Due to the impracticability of determining
the specific effects of the error on comparative information for one or more prior periods presented no restatement of prior year
Financial Statements has been made.
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B. Measurement of Fair Value
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(I). Fair value hierarchy
The fair value of the investment properties are valued by Messrs Chulananda Wellappili is an independent valuer who is holding a
degrees of B.Sc Estate Management and Valuation, M.Sc Town and Country Planning and PG.Dip in Regional Planning.
Further, he is graduate member of valuers Sri Lanka, a member of Institute of Town and Country Planning Sri Lanka, senior
certified valuer of International Real Estate Institute of USA, a corporate member of Institute of Revenues, Rating and
Valuation of UK.

Corporate Governance

(II). Valuation technique and significant unobservable inputs
The fair value measurement of the investment property of Rs. 295 million has been categorised as Level 3 fair value based on the
inputs to the valuation techniques used.
The following table shows the valuation technique used in measuring the fair value of investment property, as well as the significant
unobservable inputs used.

Financial Reports

Valuation technique

Significant unobservable inputs

Interrelationship between

Land value is based on the market price
of the respective land

Market value of land (price per perch).
Valuer has used a range of prices for
respective lands based on their recently
transacted cost.

Market value per perch would increase/
(decrease) if- market value per perch was
higher/lower.

Contractor’s method: The contractor’s
method works on the basis that a
property’s value can be equated to
its cost. Valuer assess the cost of the
building of it would have constructed in
current period, and deduct margin for
usage of the property based on their
period of construction.

Construction cost per square feet of a
building. Depreciation rate for the usage
of assets.

Cost per square feet would increase/
(decrease) or/and depreciation rate for
usage lower/(higher)

13. EQUITY ACCOUNTED INVESTEE
13.1 Investment in associate (Non quoted)
Share of profit

Reality (Lanka) Limited

Carrying

net of dividends

Carrying

Holding

Holding

value

received for

value

31.03.2019

31.12.2017

31.03.2019

fifteen Months

31.12.2017

%

%

Rs.

Rs.

45

45

71,958,788

3,410,030

68,548,758

71,958,788

3,410,030

68,548,758

Total gross carrying amount of
investments in equity accounted
investees
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Rs.

Rs.

14,548,758

6,542,496

Reality (Lanka) Limited
Balance brought forward

3,410,030

8,006,262

Current period retained profit

17,958,788

14,548,758

Add: cost of equity accounted investee

54,000,000

54,000,000

Total carrying amount of investment

71,958,788

68,548,758

Share of profit before income tax

4,901,350

11,471,858

Income tax expense

(1,491,320)

(3,465,596)

Share of profit net of income tax

3,410,030

8,006,262

Current period share of profit (note 13.2.1)

13.2.1 Share of profit/loss

13.3 The share of equity accounted investee profits is based on the audited Financial Statements for the fifteen months period
ended 31 March 2019.
13.4 Summary of Financial Information of Equity Accounted Investees
31.03.2019

31.12.2017

Rs.

Rs.

235,702,000

217,250,625

2,310,071

991,188

238,012,071

218,241,813

Non-current liabilities

15,678,004

12,628,311

Current liabilities

62,425,618

53,282,897

Total liabilities

78,103,622

65,911,208

159,908,449

152,330,605

45%

45%

71,958,802

68,548,772

Non-current assets
Current assets
Total assets

Net assets
Share of investment

Revenue

9,618,750

7,695,000

Change in fair value of investment property

1,951,375

18,222,666

Expenses

(3,992,281)

(8,125,973)

Profit for the period

7,577,844

17,791,693

Share of profit 45%

3,410,030

8,006,262
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14. INVENTORIES
Management Reports

31.03.2019

31.12.2017

Rs.

Rs.

Raw materials

86,371,186

69,711,132

Work in progress - sewing machines

35,795,382

18,142,040

Finished goods
Corporate Governance
Financial Reports

21,017,924

7,523,323

Spare parts and consumables

8,190,805

11,682,593

Goods in transit

5,004,520

5,224,181

156,379,817

112,283,269

(16,021,131)

(14,677,297)

140,358,686

97,605,972

14,677,297

11,192,577

1,343,834

3,484,720

16,021,131

14,677,297

Less : Impairment of inventories (Note 14.1)

14.1 Impairment of Inventories
Balance as at the beginning of the period
Provision for the period
Balance as at the end of the period

15. Amounts dues from related Companies
Company had adopted SLFRS - 09 on financial instruments. The details regarding the adoption is provided in note 3.5 to these
Financial Statements.
Relationship

31.03.2019

31.12.2017

Rs.

Rs.

67,279,908

87,313,392

Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC

Parent Company

Regnis (Lanka) PLC

Related Company

760,299

563,494

Regnis Appliance (Pvt) Ltd

Related Company

16,664,173

13,154,332

84,704,380

101,031,218

31.03.2019

31.12.2017

Rs.

Rs.

1,829,472

5,552,346

26,963

-

1,856,435

5,552,346

16. Amounts dues to related Companies
Relationship

Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC

Parent Company

Hayleys PLC

Ultimate parent Company
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Rs.

Rs.

788,176

853,453

788,176

853,453

2,920,456

1,507,821

300,000

412,222

3,220,456

1,920,043

1,265,675

2,270,006

183,345

168,591

17.1 Non Current
Loans to Company officers (Note 17.3)

17.2 Current
Deposits and advances
Loans to Company officers (Note 17.3)

17.3 Loans to Company officers:
Summary
Balance as at the beginning of the period
Unwinding interest income

(360,844)

(1,172,922)

1,088,176

1,265,675

Amount receivable after one year

788,176

853,453

Amount receivable within one year

300,000

412,222

1,088,176

1,265,675

31.03.2019

31.12.2017

Rs.

Rs.

399,582

542,290

4,448,211

2,959,381

4,847,793

3,501,671

Less: loans recovered during the period
Balance as at the end of the period
Analysis of loans to Company officers by years of repayments

18. PREPAYMENTS

Prepaid employee benefits
Other prepayments
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19. INCOME TAX RECOVERABLE/(PAYABLE)
Management Reports

31.03.2019

31.12.2017

Rs.

Rs.

Balance at the beginning of the period

5,119,374

(917,588)

Withholding tax on fixed deposit

1,536,705

1,395,675

Corporate Governance
Financial Reports

Payment made during the period

6,472,180

10,428,223

Current tax expense for the period

(5,272,660)

(5,786,936)

Balance at the end of the period

7,855,599

5,119,374

31.03.2019

31.12.2017

Rs.

Rs.

142,792,777

122,904,845

142,792,777

122,904,845

31.03.2019

31.12.2017

Rs.

Rs.

20. INVESTMENT IN FIXED DEPOSITS

Singer Finance (Lanka) PLC

Maturity

: 27.01.2020 and 06.03.2020

Rate

: 13.46% p.a

21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Components of cash and cash equivalents

21.1 Favourable cash and cash equivalents balance
Cash in hand

175,750

175,750

Cash at bank

2,140,303

17,757,826

2,316,053

17,933,576

Bank overdraft (Note 21.2.1)

(49,387,957)

(5,176,976)

Total cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of Cash Flow Statement

(47,071,904)

12,756,600

21.2 Unfavourable cash and cash equivalent balances
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Nominal

Year of

Carrying

Year of

Carrying

interest rate

maturity

amount

maturity

amount

(%)
Bank overdraft

Seylan Bank

12.30%

2019

18,047,145

2017

-

Bank overdraft

Commercial Bank

13.05%

2019

31,340,812

2017

5,176,976

Total bank overdraft

49,387,957

5,176,976

22. STATED CAPITAL
22.1 Issued and fully paid

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares

Value of ordinary shares

Issued for

Balance at the

Balance at

Issued for

the beginning

cash during

of the period

the period

consideration

31.03.2019

31.12.2017

3,846,300

-

6,154,080

10,000,380

3,846,300

3,846,300

-

6,154,080

10,000,380

3,846,300

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

38,463,000

-

61,540,800

100,003,800

38,463,000

38,463,000

-

61,540,800

100,003,800

38,463,000

non cash end of the period

Balance at the
end of the year

22.1.1 The Board of Singer Industries (Ceylon) PLC capitalized its reserves of Rs. 71,559,069.76 (Including related taxes of
Rs. 10,018,269.76), as required by CSE listing rule No 5.3 in issuing of shares credited as fully paid up, i.e. 6,154,080 no of ordinary
shares have been issued (8 new ordinary shares for each 5 existing ordinary shares) in order to meet the listing requirement of “Diri
Savi Board” of CSE. Holders of these shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one
vote per share at a meeting of the Company.
22.2 Shares held by Group Companies
The shares of the Company held by the Group Companies are as follows.

Held by group companies
Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC

31.03.2019

31.12.2017

31.03.2019

31.12.2017

%

%

Number

Number

87.72

87.72

8,772,314

3,373,967

8,772,314

3,373,967
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31.03.2019

31.12.2017

Rs.

Rs.

707,143,010

655,522,579

61,484,250

61,484,250

480,316,487

442,359,286

541,800,737

503,843,536

1,248,943,747

1,159,366,115

31.03.2019

31.12.2017

Rs.

Rs.

Balance as at beginning of the period

655,522,579

890,076,732

Bonus issue

(71,559,070)

-

Surplus on revaluation during the period

175,974,496

-

Deferred tax effect on revaluation surplus

(49,272,859)

(232,425,037)

(3,522,136)

(2,129,116)

707,143,010

655,522,579

23.1 (a) Capital reserves
Revaluation reserve (Note 23.1.1)
(b) Revenue reserves
General reserves (Note 23.1.2)
Retained earnings

23.1.1 Revaluation reserve
On property, plant and equipment

Realisation of revaluation surplus
Balance as at the end of the period

The above revaluation surplus consist of net surplus resulting from the revaluation land and building as described in Note 11.6 to
the Financial Statements.

23.1.2 General reserve
General reserve which is a revenue reserve represents the amounts set aside by the Directors for general application.
31.03.2019

31.12.2017

Rs.

Rs.

Balance at the beginning of the period

61,484,250

61,484,250

Balance at the end of the period

61,484,250

61,484,250

The movement of general reserve is as follows :
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Rs.

Rs.

238,640,772

9,839,916

6,865,000

-

245,505,772

9,839,916

1,079,957

(358,962)

Deferred tax on revaluation of land

34,067,600

232,425,037

Deferred tax on revaluation of building

15,205,259

-

Recognized on Other Comprehensive Income

50,352,816

232,066,075

Balance at the beginning of the period
Adjustment on building valuation (Note 12.1)
Adjusted balance at the beginning of the period
Deferred tax on retirement benefit obligation

Recognized on Profit or Loss
Balance at the end of the period

2,710,925

(3,265,219)

298,569,513

238,640,772

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against tax
liabilities and when the deferred income tax relate to the same fiscal authority.
The composition of closing deferred tax liability is as follows.
31.03.2019

31.12.2017

Assets

Liabilities

Assets

Liabilities

-

266,492,637

-

232,425,037

Property, plant and equipment

-

45,788,959

-

31,377,309

Surplus on revaluation of investment property (Note 24.2)

-

9,500,000

-

-

14,426,742

-

Surplus on revaluation of land (Note 24.1)

Provision for retiring gratuity
Tax losses carried forward (Note 24.3)
Provision for bonus

15,046,399
-

-

4,486,341

-

2,428,786

-

1,631,462

-

Provision for warranties

1,251,181

-

507,386

-

Provision for inventories

4,485,917

-

4,109,643

-

23,212,283

321,781,596

25,161,574

263,802,346

Total
Net deferred tax liability

298,569,313

238,640,772

24.1 As per the Inland Revenue Act No. 24 of 2017, business income includes gains from realization of capital assets and liabilities
of a business. Accordingly, the gain from the realization of an asset or liability shall be the amount by which the sum of the
consideration received for the asset or liability exceeds the acquiring cost of the asset or liability at the time of realization. The
Company has recognized a revaluation reserve on freehold land (capital assets of the Company) amounting to Rs. 951,759,417 as at
31 March 2019 (2017-Rs. 830,089,417) which was the amount by which the sum of the carrying value of the freehold land exceeds the
acquiring cost of he lands based in the revaluation carried out and accounted for as at the balance sheet date. Hence, the Company
has recognized a deferred tax liability of Rs. 266, 492, 637 (2017- 232,425,037)on revaluation reserve of the freehold land which is
computed at the corporate tax rate of 28%.
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24.2 The Company has recognized deferred tax on revaluation of its land and building classified as investment property (Investment
assets) at the rate of 10% as per the Inland Revenue Act No. 24 of 2017. Accordingly, the Company has recognized deferred tax
liability of Rs. 9,500,000 as at 31 March 2019 on the revaluation gain reported during the period.				
24.3 The tax effect of tax losses carried are recognized as deferred tax assets as management considered it probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which these tax losses can be utilized in the future.
25. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

Corporate Governance

31.03.2019

31.12.2017

Rs.

Rs.

Balance at the beginning of the period

51,524,079

44,524,979

Actuarial loss/(gain)

(3,856,275)

1,282,007

Current service cost

2,145,866

2,157,887

Interest cost

7,022,055

5,120,373

Financial Reports

Benefits paid

(3,098,588)

(1,561,167)

Balance at the end of the period

53,737,137

51,524,079

The Company maintains a non-contributory defined benefit plan providing for gratuity benefits payable to employees, which is
expressed in terms of final monthly salary and service.
As at 31 March 2019, the gratuity liability was actuarially valued under the projected unit credit ( PUC ) method by a professionally
qualified actuary Pushpakumar Gunasekera of Smiles Global (Pvt) Ltd who is a qualified actuary and a member of Associate of the
Institute of Actuaries of Australia (AIAA).
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11.00% p.a

10.25% p.a.

10% p.a

10% p.a.

A1967/70

A67/70

Males

60 years

60 years

Females

60 years

60 years

(a) Discount rate
(b) Salary increment rate
(c) Assumptions regarding future mortality (basis)
(d) Retirement age

The expense is recognised under cost of sales in the Income Statement and Other Comprehensive Income.

25.1 Sensitivity of assumptions used
Effect on the defined benefit obligation liability if one percentage point change in the assumptions would have the following
effects,
Effect

Effect

2019

2017

Rs. (000)

Rs. (000)

Increase by one percentage point - (increase)/decrease

(1,984)

(2,325)

Decrease by one percentage point - (increase)/decrease

2,137

2,527

Increase by one percentage point - increase/(decrease)

2,049

2,672

Decrease by one percentage point - increase/(decrease)

(1,936)

(2,497)

31.03.2019

31.12.2017

Rs.

Rs.

42,846,623

43,748,845

5,217,488

15,510,185

48,064,111

59,259,030

(A) Discount Rate

(B) Salary increment rate

26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables
Accrued expenses
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Warranties

Bonus

Total

Total

Rs.

Rs.

31.03.2019

31.12.2017

Balance at the beginning of the period

1,812,094

5,826,646

7,638,740

13,156,735

Provision made during the period

5,158,391

8,339,526

13,497,917

15,557,161

Provision utilised during the period

(2,501,980)

(5,491,936)

(7,993,916)

(21,075,157)

Balance at the end of the period

4,468,505

8,674,236

13,142,741

7,638,739

Warranties : A provision of Rs. 4,468,505/- has been recognised for expected warranty claims in product sold during the current
financial period.
Bonus

: A provision of 8,674,236/- has been recognised for expected bonus payable for all employees as at 31 March 2019.

Financial Reports

28. DIVIDENDS PAYABLE

Unclaimed dividends

31.03.2019

31.12.2017

Rs.

Rs.

1,861,886

1,168,352

1,861,886

1,168,352

As at

As at

31.03.2019

31.12.2017

29. LOANS AND BORROWINGS

Term loans (Secured)
-

-

Loans obtained during the period

130,000,000

-

Repayment of term loans during the period

(70,000,000)

-

Balance at end of the period (Note 29.1)

60,000,000

-

Balance at beginning of the period
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As at

As at

As at

As at

31.03.2019

31.03.2019

31.03.2019

31.12.2017

31.12.2017

31.12.2017

Amount

Amount

Amount

Amount

Repayable

Repayable

Repayable

Repayable

Within 1 Year

After 1 Year

Total

Within 1 Year

After 1 Year

Total

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

Bank loans

60,000,000

-

60,000,000

-

-

-

Total

60,000,000

-

60,000,000

-

-

-

Nominal interest rate

31.03.2019

31.12.2017

Commercial bank

12.40%

20,000,000

-

Seylan bank

12.30%

40,000,000

-

60,000,000

-

Facility type

Bank/ Institution

Short term loan
Short term loan
Total

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - FAIR VALUES AND RISK MANAGEMENT
30.1 Financial Risk Management
The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from ﬁnancial instruments:
(1) Credit risk
(2) Liquidity risk
(3) Market risk
This note presents the information about the Company exposure to each of the above risks. The Company’s objective is to set the
policies and procedures for measuring and managing the risk and the Company’s Capital Management.
30.1.1 Risk Management Framework
The Company’s Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management
framework. The Board of Directors has established the Risk Management Committee, which is responsible for developing and
monitoring the Company’s risk management policies. The committee reports regularly to the Board of Directors on its activities.
The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate
risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly
to reﬂect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company, through its training and management standards
and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles
and obligations.
The Company Audit Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company’s risk management policies
and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The
Company’s Audit Committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad-hoc
reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the Audit Committee.
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30.1.2 Credit Risk
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Credit risk is the ﬁnancial loss incurred to the Company as a result of the customer or counter-party to a ﬁnancial instrument fails
to meet its contractual obligations. Credit risk arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers and investment in
ﬁxed deposits.
30.1.2.1 Exposure to Credit Risk
The carrying amount of ﬁnancial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of
the reporting period is as follows.

Corporate Governance

Related party receivables

31.03.2019

31.12.2017

Rs.

Rs.

84,704,380

101,031,218

Financial Reports

Other receivables

4,008,629

2,773,497

Bank balances

2,140,302

17,757,825

Investment in fixed deposits

142,792,777

122,904,845

Total

233,646,088

244,467,385

30.1.2.2 Receivables from related parties
The Company’s principal customer, Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC, Regnis Appliance (Pvt) Ltd and Regnis (Lanka) PLC settle dues on a one
month credit term.
30.1.2.3 Loans given to employees
Loans are given to permanent conﬁrmed employees and are deducted from the salaries as per the terms of granting the loan.
Company has adequate security over the housing/vehicle loans granted.
The credit quality of ﬁnancial assets which are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to historical information
on counter-party default rates. All receivables of the Company have a history of zero defaults. None of the above assets are past
due or impaired.
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Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its ﬁnancial liabilities
that are settled by delivering cash or another ﬁnancial asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as
possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions,
without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.
In order to minimize the risk, the Company regularly reviews its liquidity position and reports to the Board. Further, cash
requirements are ascertained through continuous rolling forecasts. The expected cash inﬂows from trade receivables, outﬂows from
trade payables and imports are closely monitored by the Company.
The Company also maintains excellent relationships with banks, with which it has dealings and enjoy substantial banking facilities.
The Company aims to maintain banking facilities in excess of expected funding requirements. The table below highlights the lines
of credit and utilized facilities as at 31 March 2019.

Lines of Credit

Facility Amount

31.03.2019

31.12.2017

Utilization

Utilization

Rs.

Rs.

Short-Term Loan

90,000,000

60,000,000

Nil

Overdraft

50,000,000

49,387,957

5,176,976

Total Borrowing Facility VS. Utilization

255,000,000

109,387,957

5,176,976

Letter of Credit Facility VS. Utilization

115,000,000

28,427,834

48,383,596

In addition, the treasury of the parent Company, Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC also assists the Company by providing funds at competitive
rates based on the requirements. However, there were no such funds payable to Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC as at 31 March 2019.
This excludes the potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted.
Following are the remaining contractual maturities of ﬁnancial liabilities, including estimated interest payments as at the end of the
reporting period:
Contractual

As at 31 March 2019
Carrying

Cash Flow

Amount

Total

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

Overdraft

49,387,957

49,387,957

49,387,957

Trade payables

42,846,623

42,846,623

42,846,623

5,217,488

5,217,488

5,217,488

Trade other payables

1 Month
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30.2 Liquidity Risk
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The Company held cash and cash equivalents of Rs.2,316,053/- (including cash in hand amount of Rs.175,750/-) and fixed deposit of
Rs. 142,792,777/- as at 31 March 2019. The cash and cash equivalents balances are held with reputed commercial banks.

Management Reports

(2) Cash and Cash Equivalents
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As at 31 December 2017

Contractual

Overdraft

Carrying

Cash Flow

Amount

Total

1 Month

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

Corporate Governance

5,176,976

5,176,976

5,176,976

Trade payables

43,748,845

43,748,845

43,748,845

Trade other payables

15,510,185

15,510,185

15,510,185

Gross inﬂows/outﬂows disclosed in the previous table represent the contractual undiscounted cash ﬂows obtained on variable
interest rates. Interest payments of these loans indicated in the table above reﬂect the present market interest rates at the period
end and may vary according to changes in the market interest rates.
30.3 Market Risk

Financial Reports

Market risk refers to losses arising due to changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates that would
impact Company’s income or the value of investment in ﬁnancial instruments. The objective of managing market risk is to manage
and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing returns.
(1) Currency Risk
The Company is exposed to currency risk through import credit obtained at differently - denominated currencies the Company
transacts in. The primary denominations of currencies in which these transactions are conducted are US Dollars, Singapore Dollars
and Chinese Yuan Renminbi (CNY).
Given below is the summary of the import credit exposure as at 31 March 2019.
Trade Payable US$ 113,363 and CNY 508,890 (2017 - US$ 190,741)
On reporting date spot rate was US$ 1 = LKR 178.02 (2017 - US$ 1 =LKR 155.41)
At 31 March 2019, the post-tax proﬁt and shareholder equity would be Rs. 5,266,952/- higher/lower based on the appreciation/
depreciation of the Sri Lankan Rupee by 11.88% against the US$, due to the US$ denominated trade payables.
Equity

31 March 2019 US$ (11.88% Movement)

Profit or Loss

Appreciation

Depreciation

Appreciation

Depreciation

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

(5,266,952)

5,266,952

(5,266,952)

5,266,952

At 31 December 2017, the post-tax proﬁt and shareholder equity would be Rs. 411,919/- higher/lower based on the appreciation/
depreciation of the Sri Lankan Rupee by 11.88% against the US$, due to the US$ denominated trade payables
Equity

31 December 2017 US$ (1.4% Movement)
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Profit or Loss

Appreciation

Depreciation

Appreciation

Depreciation

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

(411,919)

411,919

(411,919)

411,919

About Us

81

The borrowings are denominated in Sri Lankan Rupees which is the functional currency.

30.4 Capital Management
The Board’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base to maintain conﬁdence of the investors, creditors and the market while
sustaining future development of the business. Capital consists of total equity. The Board of Directors monitors the return on capital
as well as the level of dividends to ordinary shareholders.

Financial Reports

The Board of Directors seeks to maintain a balance between higher returns facilitated through a higher level of borrowings and the
beneﬁts and security afforded by a sound capital position.
The capital structure of the Company consists of debt and equity of the Group (comprising issued capital, reserves, retained
earnings as detailed in Note 22 and 23). The capital structure of the Company is reviewed by the Board of Directors.
The gearing ratio is given below:
(1) Gearing Ratio
31.03.2019

31.12.2017

Rs.

Rs.

Total Borrowings

109,387,957

5,176,976

Total Debt

109,387,957

5,176,976

1,348,947,548

1,197,829,115

8.11%

0.43%

Equity
Debt to Equity Ratio

Corporate Governance

The Company adopts a policy of ensuring borrowings are maintained at manageable levels while optimizing returns. Interest rates
are negotiated leveraging on the strength of the Singer Group and thereby ensuring the availability of cost-effective funding at all
times, while minimizing the negative effect of market ﬂuctuations. In addition, Company has considerable banking facilities with
several reputed banks which have enabled the Company to negotiate competitive rates.

Management Reports

2) Interest Rate Risk
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30.5 Financial Instruments-Fair Value
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The effect of initially applying SLFRS 9 on the Company’s financial instruments is described in note 4. Due to the transition method
chosen, comparative information has not been restated to reflect the new requirements.
Accounting Classifications and Fair Values
Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities are not categorized into the Fair Value hierarchy as it was assumed that the carrying
value of such assets and liabilities are a reasonable approximation to the fair value as majority of such assets and liabilities are with
shorter maturity periods and has entered in to the transactions with normal market interest rates and terms.

Corporate Governance

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities, together with the carrying amounts shown in the Statement of Financial Position, are
as follows,

Note

Amortized

Other Financial

Total Carrying

Cost

Liabilities

Amount

31-Mar-19
Financial assets not measured at fair values

Financial Reports

Cash and cash equivalents

21

2,316,053

-

2,316,053

Related party receivable

15

84,704,380

-

84,704,380

Other receivables

17

4,008,632

-

4,008,632

Investments in fixed deposits

20

142,792,777

-

142,792,777

233,821,842

-

233,821,842

Financial liabilities not measured at fair values
Trade and other payables

26

-

48,064,111

48,064,111

Amounts due to related Company

16

-

1,856,435

1,856,435

21.2

-

49,387,957

49,387,957

28

-

1,861,886

1,861,886

-

101,170,389

101,170,389

Loans and

Other Financial

Total Carrying

Receivables

Liabilities

Amount

Bank overdraft
Dividend payable

Note
31-Dec-17
Financial assets not measured at fair values
Cash and cash equivalents

21

17,933,576

-

17,933,576

Related party receivable

15

101,031,218

-

101,031,218

Other receivables

17

2,773,497

-

2,773,497

Investments in fixed deposits

20

122,904,845

-

122,904,845

244,643,136

-

244,643,136

Financial liabilities not measured at fair values
Trade and other payables

26

-

59,259,030

59,259,030

Amounts due to related Company

16

-

5,552,346

5,552,346

21.2

-

5,176,976

5,176,976

28

-

1,168,352

1,168,352

-

71,156,704

71,156,704

Bank overdraft
Dividend payable
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31.1 Capital Expenditure Commitments
The Company does not have significant capital commitments as at the reporting date.
31.2 Contingencies
31.2.1 Finance Commitments
Document credit are affected for foreign purchases of the Company amounting to Rs. 28,427,834/- (2017- Rs. 48,383,596/-) on the
basis that the Company is liable for the additional duty. Hence, no provision is made in the Financial Statements. As at 31.03.2019,
Company has provided a guarantee of Rs. 100,000 to Director General of Custom to clear imports during the fifteen months period
of 2018/19 (Against 100% Cash Margin). Other than the above, the Company does not have any significant contingencies as at the
reporting date.
32. EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE REPORTING DATE
There were no material events occurring after the date of Statement of Financial Position that require adjustments to or disclosure
in the Financial Statements.
The Directors have approved a final dividend of Rs. 1.57 per ordinary share amounting to Rs. 15.7 million for the fifteen months
ended 31 March 2019 to be paid on 03.06.2019. In accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standard (LKAS) 10 “Event after reporting
period”, the proposed final dividend has not been recognized as a liability at the reporting date.
33. RELATED PARTY
The Company carries out transactions in the ordinary course of its business on an arm’s length basis with parties who are defined as
related parties in Sri Lanka Accounting Standards (LKAS 24) “Related party disclosures”, The details are as follows.
33.1 Parent and Ultimate Controlling Party
Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC is the parent Company of Singer Industries (Ceylon) PLC. The Hayleys PLC is the ultimate parent Company
of Singer Industries (Ceylon) PLC. On 15 September 2017, Hayleys PLC with parties acting in concert acquired 61.73% of Singer
(Sri Lanka) PLC. Accordingly, Hayleys PLC became the ultimate parent Company of Singer Industries (Ceylon) PLC with effect from
15 September 2017. Subsequently, Hayleys PLC with parties acting in concert issued a notice of mandatory offer in line with terms
of Rule 31(1) (a) of takeovers and mergers code 1995, to purchase 108,201,585 ordinary shares carrying voting rights of Singer (Sri
Lanka) PLC at a price of Rs. 47/- per share (excluding 35,562,883 shares held by Retail Holding (Sri Lanka) BV. After exercising the
mandatory offer, Hayleys PLC together with its group Companies holds 80.96% (approx.) of Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC. On 15 October
2018, Hayleys PLC purchased the balance 35,562,883 (9.47%) ordinary shares held by Retail Holdings (Sri Lanka) BV in Singer (Sri
Lanka) PLC at a price of Rs. 47/- per share upon Retail Holdings (Sri Lanka) BV exercising their option to sell its shares to Hayleys
PLC as previously agreed. After accepting this offer, Hayleys PLC together with its group Companies holds 90.43% (80.96%
previously) of Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC.
33.2 Transactions with Key Management Personnel (“KMP”)
According to Sri Lanka Accounting Standard (LKAS) 24 “Related Party Disclosure”, Key Management Personnel are those having
authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity. Accordingly, the Directors (including
Executives and Non Executive Directors) of the Company and their immediate family members have been classified as Key
Personnel of the Company.
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31. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
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Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities are not categorized in to the Fair Value hierarchy as it was assumed that the carrying
value of such assets and liabilities are a reasonable approximation to the fair value as majority of such assets and liabilities are with
shorter maturity periods and has entered in to the transactions with normal market interest rates and terms.

Management Reports
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(a) Compensation of key Management Personnel
Management Reports

Short term employee benefits

2019

2017

Rs.

Rs.

- Directors emoluments

1,255,575

1,520,453

- Non-Executive Directors fees

3,041,000

1,564,458

Corporate Governance

In addition to their salaries the Company provides non-cash benefits to key management personnel and contribute to a post
employment defined benefit plan on their behalf . Directors emoluments are disclosed in Note 8 to the Financial Statements.

(b) Loans to Directors
No loans have been given to the Directors of the Company.
33.3 Other Related Party Transactions

Financial Reports

(a) Transactions with Related Entities

Name of the Company and Relationship

For fifteen

For twelve

months ended

months ended

2019

2017

Rs.

Rs.

741,603,999

676,814,214

676,605

(1,862,731)

Expenses reimbursed

(23,212,974)

(15,372,348)

Lease rental received

25,921,760

11,511,735

-

-

(761,300,000)

(697,300,000)

Nature of Transaction

Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC.
(Parent Company)

Sales
Net finance charge

Sales of equipment
Funds received
Regnis (Lanka) PLC
(Related Company)

Sales

8,793,183

2,942,148

Expenses reimbursed

1,165,316

1,094,645

24,375

-

(9,255,871)

(3,473,299)

(530,197)

-

142,792,777

122,904,845

19,887,932

12,580,016

Interest income
Trade debtors settlement
Non-trade debtors settlement
Singer Finance (Lanka) PLC
(Related Company)

Investment in fixed deposits
Interest received on fixed deposits
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months ended

months ended

2019

2017

Rs.

Rs.

(7,927,762)

(4,608,214)

Sales (gross)

171,482,663

78,415,495

Funds received

(160,258,954)

(67,970,598)

(70,408)

-

Interest on due balance

457,374

359,562

Settlement

(173,071)

-

3,257,760

-

(26,963)

-

(3,257,760)

-

Nature of Transaction

Regnis Appliances (Pvt) Ltd
(Related Company)

Purchases - raw materials

Fixed assets purchases

Hayleys PLC
(Ultimate Related Company)

Management fee
Expenses reimbursed
Settlement

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties:
Transactions with related parties are carried out in the ordinary course of the business. Outstanding current account balances as at
the period end are unsecured, and the settlements will be made in cash subject to the following credit period.
Credit Period
Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC 		

30 Days

Regnis Appliances (Pvt) Ltd 		

30 Days

Regnis (Lanka) PLC 		

30 Days

The related party borrowings are at pre-determined interest rates and terms.
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Name of the Company and Relationship

For fifteen
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2019.03.31
Rs.
Turnover (Gross)
Other income

2017.12.31
%

RS.

786,935,376

646,578,610

24,621,892

10,801,523

Corporate Governance

811,557,268

657,380,133

Goods and services bought in

552,451,562

354,527,686

Value added

259,105,706

302,852,447

%

Distribution of value added

Financial Reports

126,528,215

48.8

109,349,933

To Goverments as taxes and duty

88,989,788

34.3

129,637,337

42.8

To shareholders as dividends

15,700,597

6.1

51,155,790

16.9

As interest

7,999,174

3.1

129,372

0.04

Reinvested

19,887,932

7.7

12,580,015

4.2

259,105,706

100

302,852,447

100

Paid to employees

Paid to Employees
To Goverments as Taxes & Duty

2019.03.31

To Shareholders as Dividends
As Interest
Reinvested
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2017.12.31

36.1

Ten Years at a Glance

2016

2015

2014

2013

2012

2011

2010

2009

Rs’000

Rs’000

Rs’000

Rs’000

Rs’000

Rs’000

Rs’000

Rs’000

Rs’000

Rs’000

786,935

646,579

743,206

740,052

Profit/(Loss) before Taxation

29,013

70,931

51,865

(4,867)

9,243

20,339

37,830

Taxation

(7,984)

(2,522)

(9,847)

(3,256)

1,242

6,965

5,156

Profit/(Loss) from Continuing
Operations

21,029

68,410

42,019

(1,611)

8,001

13,374

32,674

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

21,029

68,410

42,019

(1,611)

8,001

13,374

32,674

51,467 126,811 (33,762)

38,463

38,463

38,463

38,463

TRADING RESULTS
Turnover - Net

Discontinued Operations
(Net of Income Tax ).
Profit / (Loss) for the period

715,416 588,404 745,998 713,560 664,136 485,956
46,003 127,657 (56,168)
(484)

9,488 (22,319)

46,487 118,169 (33,849)
4,980

8,642

87

Paid Up Capital

100,004

38,463

38,463

38,463

Capital Reserves

707,143

655,523

890,077

542,454

545,131 472,632 475,185 401,717 403,376 385,069

Revenue Reserves

541,801

503,844

459,229

408,275

406,973 396,471 387,085 384,577 364,348 237,537

1,348,948 1,197,829 1,387,769

989,192

990,567 907,565 900,733 824,757 806,187 661,069

Long Term Loans
Deferred Liabilities

38,463

38,463

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

6,275

13,799

298,569

238,641

54,365

52,747

56,410

54,581

46,822

43,847

45,898

42,991

1,647,517 1,436,470 1,442,134 1,041,939 1,046,977 962,146 947,555 868,604 858,360 717,859
ASSETS EMPLOYED
Current Assets

386,096

350,017

387,549

372,692

368,279 344,747 346,188 330,556 537,813 192,001

Current Liabilities

174,313

78,795

104,484

132,388

138,167 116,621 138,392 113,709 306,451 170,640

Working Capital
Fixed Assets
Investment Property
Investments
Other Receivables
Deferred Tax Asset

211,783

271,222

274,065

240,304

230,113 228,126 207,796 216,847 231,362

1,121,724

947,370

956,574

613,340

626,867 556,624 563,276 487,897 496,374 464,347

295,000

200,000

150,000

126,000

126,000 113,445 113,445 100,840 100,840 100,840

71,959

68,549

60,542

61,685

62,088

59,870

59,246

52,746

26,465

96,741

788

853

953

609

1,910

4,081

3,793

3,747

2,426

4,158

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

6,526

893

30,412

21,361

1,701,254 1,487,994 1,442,134 1,041,939 1,046,977 962,146 947,555 868,604 858,360 717,859
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2018/19

2017

2016

2015

2014

2013

2012

2011

2010

2009

Rs’000

Rs’000

Rs’000

Rs’000

Rs’000

Rs’000

Rs’000

Rs’000

Rs’000

Rs’000

2.10

6.84

10.92

(0.42)

2.08

3.48

8.49

12.09

30.72

(8.80)

(0.53)

1.84

4.68

(0.42)

2.08

3.48

5.22

(2.21)

(4.57)

(8.80)

2.10

6.84

10.92

(0.42)

2.08

3.48

8.49

13.38

32.97

(8.78)

134.89

311.42

361

257.18

257.54

235.96

234.18

214.43

209.60

171.87

0.02

0.06

0.89

(0.14)

0.84

1.48

3.79

6.31

17.30

(4.95)

15,701

51,156

25,001

-

-

1,923

5,769

33,655

33,655

-

Dividend Per Share(Rs)

1.57

13.30

6.50

-

-

0.50

1.50

8.75

8.75

-

Dividend Cover

1.34

1.33

1.68

-

-

6.95

5.66

1.53

3.77

-

21.71

(13.00)

0.43

3.44

21.59

(21.13)

4.55

7.44

36.67

(37.88)

Inflation Rate (%)

3.30

7.10

3.75

4.00

5.00

6.90

7.60

6.70

6.90

4.80

Current Ratio

2.21

4.44

2.38

2.82

2.67

2.96

2.50

2.90

1.75

1.13

Assets (Rs.000)

7,491

182

231

67

1,637

1,165

7,452

468

7,079

1,245

Price Earnings Ratio (Times)

21.05

8.09

13.32

(440.99)

95.18

33.76

17.08

18.98

4.37

(9.26)

Market Value of Share

58.00

144.00

145.50

184.70

198.00

117.50

145.00

254.00

144.00

81.25

TRADING RESULTS
Earnings/(Loss) Per Share
From Continuing
Operations (Rs)
From Continuing
Operations before change
in Fair value of Current
Investment
After Discontinued
Operations (Rs)
Net Assets per Share at
Period end (Rs)
Return on Average Net
Assets (%)
DIVIDENDS
Dividends (Rs)

OTHERS
Annual Sales Growth (%)

Investment in Fixed
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STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING
The ordinary voting shares of the Company were transferred to the “Diri Savi Board” of CSE with effect from 15 October 2018.In
terms of the option 2 of section 7.13.1 (b) the Company is in compliance with the minimum public holding of 10%.
DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDINGS - 31 MARCH 2019
2019

Category

2017

No. of Holders

Total Holdings

%

No. of Holders

Total Holdings

%

816

212,831

2.13

931

182,096

4.73

1,001 to 10,000

210

519,440

5.19

77

196,675

5.12

10,001 to 100,000

19

495,795

4.96

4

93,562

2.43

1 to 1,000

100,001 to 1,000,000

-

-

-

-

-

-

Over 1,000,000 Shares

1

8,772,314

87.72

1

3,373,967

87.72

1,046

10,000,380

100.00

1,013

3,846,300

100.00

2019

Category
No. of Holders

1 to 1,000

Precentage
No. of Holdings (Shares)

No. of Holdings

Foreign

Local

Foreign

Local

Foreign

Local

16

800

5,883

206,948

0.06

2.07

1,001 to 10,000

5

205

16,160

503,280

0.16

5.03

10,001 to 100,000

-

19

-

495,795

-

4.96

100,001 to 1,000,000

-

-

-

-

-

-

Over 1,000,000 Shares

-

1

-

8,772,314

-

87.72

21

1,025

22,043

9,978,337

0.22

99.78

DIRECTORS’ SHARE HOLDINGS AS AT 31 MARCH 2019
Name of Director

CDS

Non - CDS

Mr. A.M. Pandithage

Nil

Nil

Mr. M.H. Wijewardene

Nil

Nil

Mr. V.G.K. Vidyaratne

195

65

Mr. K.D. Kospelawatta

520

Nil

Mr. S.C. Ganegoda

Nil

Nil

Mr. M.H. Jamaldeen

Nil

Nil

Mr. N.L.S. Joseph

Nil

Nil

Mr. K.D.G. Gunaratne

Nil

Nil

Mr. D.K. De Silva Wijeyeratne

Nil

Nil
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Rs. 100,003,800/10,000,380
One Vote per Ordinary Share
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Voting Rights
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Management Reports

2019

2017

No. of
Shareholders

No. of Shares

%

No. of
Shareholders

No. of Shares

%

1,043

1,227,286

12.27

1,010

472,033

12.27

Shares held by public

Corporate Governance

TWENTY LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS AS AT 31 MARCH 2019
Name

No. of Shares

%

8,772,314

87.72

Financial Reports

1

Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC

2

J.B. Cocoshell (Pvt) Ltd

84,219

0.84

3

Union Investments (Pvt) Ltd

82,680

0.83

4

Mr. U.I. Suriyabandara

71,889

0.72

5

Mr. G.C. Goonetilleke

31,365

0.31

6

Mr. A.L.M. Hussain

26,000

0.26

7

Mrs. Z.T. Jafferjee

21,899

0.22

8

Mrs. C.D.D. Kumari

17,550

0.18

9

Mr. S. Ramanathan

17,329

0.17

10

Dr. D. Jayanntha

17,000

0.17

11

Mr. S. Nishyanthan

15,600

0.16

Mr. W.D.D.R. Mahatantila

15,600

0.16

12

Mr. S. Aravinthan

13,260

0.13

13

Mrs. M.J. Thambinayagam

13,000

0.13

The Incorporated Trustees of the Church of Ceylon

13,000

0.13

14

Mr. A.M.R. Adasooriya

11,960

0.12

15

Miss. S.N. Dias

11,699

0.12

16

Mr. A.N. Majeed

10,730

0.11

17

Mr. L.N.S.K. Samarasinghe

10,670

0.11

18

Mr. A.R. Jayasinghe

10,345

0.10

19

Mr. P.D. Hennayake

9,620

0.10

20

Mrs. J. Shakeila

9,500

0.09

9,287,229

92.87

Total
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31.03.2019

31.12.2017

Rs.

Rs.

58.00

144.00

Highest Value per Share during the period

175.00

175.00

Lowest Value per Share during the period

47.20

120.00

No. of
Transactions
(Trades)

No. of Shares
(Trades)

Value of Shares
(Traded) Rs.

2019 (15 Months)

695

80,136

8,026,846

2017 (12 Months)

405

68,083

10,190,014

2016 (12 Months)

306

3,334,486

681,294,067

Closing Price for the period ended

SHARE TRADING FOR THE PERIOD ENDED
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Annual Sales Growth

%

Dividend Per Share

Rs.

2018/19

2016

Stated Capital

Rs. Mn

25

2017

10

20
8

15
10

6

5
4

0
-5

2

-10
-15

2018/19

2017

2016

2015

0

2014

2018/19

2017

2016

2015

2014

(15-months ended 31 March 2019)

Investment in Associate

Rs. Mn

Rs. Mn
800

74
72

700

70

600

68
66

500

64

400

63
61

300

59

200

57
55
54

Segmental Revenue

100
2018/19

2017

2016

2015

2014

0

2018/19
Sewing Machines
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Components Assembly
15-months ended 31 March 2019
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1. To receive, consider and adopt the Annual Report of the Board of Directors and the Statement of Accounts for the fifteen
months ended 31 March 2019 with the Report of the Auditors thereon.
2. To re-elect Mr. V.G.K. Vidyaratne, who retires by rotation at the Annual General Meeting, a Director in terms of Article 24(4) of
the Articles of Association of the Company.
3. To re-elect Mr. S.C. Ganegoda, who retires by rotation at the Annual General Meeting, a Director in terms of Article 24(4) of the
Articles of Association of the Company.
4. To elect Mr. D.K. De Silva Wijeyeratne, who has been appointed by the Board since the last Annual General Meeting, a Director
in terms of Article 24(10) of the Articles of Association of the Company.
5. To elect Mr. M.H. Wijewardene who has been appointed by the Board since the last Annual General Meeting, a Director in
terms of Article 24(10) of the Articles of Association of the Company.
6. To authorize the Directors to determine contributions to Charities for the financial year 2019/2020.
7. To authorize the Directors to determine the remuneration of the Auditors, M/s KPMG, Chartered Accountants, who are deemed
to have been reappointed as Auditors in terms of Section 158 of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007 for the financial year
2019/2020.
8. To consider any other business of which due notice has been given.
By Order of the Board
SINGER INDUSTRIES (CEYLON) PLC

HAYLEYS GROUP SERVICES (PRIVATE) LIMITED
Secretaries
Colombo
28 May 2019.

NOTE :
A Shareholder is entitled to appoint a Proxy to attend and vote instead of himself and a Proxy need not to be a Shareholder of the
Company. A Form of Proxy is enclosed for this purpose. The instrument appointing a Proxy must be deposited with the Company
Secretaries, Hayleys Group Services (Private) Limited, No. 400, Deans Road, Colombo 10 not less than 48 hours before the time
fixed for the Meeting.
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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE FIFTY SIXTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SINGER INDUSTRIES (CEYLON) PLC will be
held at the Conference Room of Hayleys PLC at No. 400, Deans Road, Colombo 10 on Wednesday, 26 June 2019 at 12.00 noon.
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Form of Proxy

SINGER INDUSTRIES (CEYLON) PLC
Company Number : PQ 104
I/We* ..................................................................................................................................................................... (full name of Shareholder**)
NIC No./Reg. No. of Shareholder (**) ................................................................................................................................................................
of ............................................................................................................................................................................................................................
being Shareholder/Shareholders* of Singer Industries (Ceylon) PLC hereby appoint:
(1) ........................................................................................................................................................................... (full name of Proxyholder**)
NIC No. of Proxyholder (**) ............................................................................................................................ of or, failing him/them
(2) ABEYAKUMAR MOHAN PANDITHAGE (Chairman of the Company) of Colombo, or failing him, one of the Directors of the
Company as my/our* Proxy to attend and vote as indicated hereunder for me/us* and on my/our* behalf at the Fifty Sixth Annual
General Meeting of the Company to be held on Wednesday, 26 June 2019 and at every poll which may be taken in consequence of
the aforesaid meeting and at any adjournment thereof.
For

Against

1. To adopt the Annual Report of the Directors and the Statements of Accounts for the fifteen months
ended 31 March 2019 with the Report of the Auditors thereon.
2. To re-elect Mr. V.G.K. Vidyaratne, who retires by rotation at the Annual General Meeting, a Director in
terms of Article 24(4) of the Articles of Association of the Company.
3. To re-elect Mr. S.C. Ganegoda, who retires by rotation at the Annual General Meeting, a Director in
terms of Article 24(4) of the Articles of Association of the Company.
4. To elect Mr. D.K. De Silva Wijeyeratne, who has been appointed by the Board since the last Annual
General Meeting, a Director in terms of Article 24(10) of the Articles of Association of the Company.
5. To elect Mr. M.H. Wijewardene who has been appointed by the Board since the last Annual General
Meeting, a Director in terms of Article 24(10) of the Articles of Association of the Company.
6. To authorize the Directors to determine contributions to Charities for the financial year 2019/2020.
7. To authorize the Directors to determine the remuneration of the Auditors, M/s KPMG, Chartered
Accountants, who are deemed to have been re-appointed as Auditors in terms of Section 158 of the
Companies Act No. 07 of 2007 for the financial year 2019/2020.
(**) The proxy may vote as he thinks fit on any other resolution brought before the Meeting of which due notice has been given.
As witness my/our* hands this .................................................. day of .................................................. 2019.
Witness:

Signature

:...........................................................................

Name

:...........................................................................

Address

:...........................................................................

NIC No.

:...........................................................................

....................................................................
Signature of Shareholder

Notes: (a) * Please delete the inappropriate words.
(b) A Shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting of the Company, is entitled to appoint a Proxy to
attend and vote instead of him/her and the Proxy need not be a Shareholder of the Company.
** Full name of Shareholder/Proxy holder and their NIC Nos. and Witness are mandatory. Your Proxy Form will be rejected if these
details are not completed.
(c) A Shareholder is not entitled to appoint more than one Proxy to attend on the same occasion.
(d) Instructions are noted on the reverse hereof.
(e) This Form of Proxy is in terms of the Articles of Association of the Company.
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INSTRUCTIONS AS TO COMPLETION:
1.

To be valid, the completed Form of Proxy must be deposited with the Company
Secretaries, Hayleys Group Services (Private) Limited at No. 400, Deans Road,
Colombo 10, Sri Lanka not less than 48 hours before the start of the Meeting.

2.

In perfecting the Form of Proxy, please ensure that all requested details are filled
in legibly including mandatory details. Kindly sign and fill in the date of signing.

3.

If you wish to appoint a person other than the Chairman of the Company (or failing
him, one of the Directors) as your Proxy, please insert the relevant details at (1)
overleaf. The Proxy need not be a Member of the Company.

4.

Please indicate with an X in the space provided how your Proxy is to vote on the
resolutions. If no indication is given, the Proxy in his discretion will vote as he
thinks fit.

5.

In the case of a Company/Corporation the Proxy must be under its common seal
which should be affixed and attested in the manner prescribed by its Articles of
Association.

6.

In the case of the individual Shareholders, the signature of the Shareholder should
be witnessed by any person over 18 years of age.

7.

Where the Form of Proxy is signed under a Power of Attorney (POA) which has not
been registered with the Company, the original POA together with a photocopy
of same or a copy certified by a Notary Public must be lodged with the Company
along with the Form of Proxy.

8.

In case of Marginal Trading Accounts (slash accounts), the Form of Proxy should
be signed by the respective authorized Fund Manager/Banker with whom the
account is maintained.

SINGER INDUSTRIES (CEYLON) PLC | Annual Report 2018 | 2019

No. 2, 5th Lane, Ratmalana.

